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South Pacific Resources Limited Agrees to Acquire Takmur Pte. Ltd.

South Pacific Resources Limited (ASX: SPB) (SPB or the Company) is pleased to announce that it
has signed a Sale and Purchase Agreement to acquire 100% of Takmur Pte. Ltd.

As part of the transaction SPB will seek shareholders’ approval to effect:

¢ a20to 1 share consolidation;
* acapital raising of AUD $14 million under a prospectus (Capital Raising); and
¢ achange in activities under the Listing Rules.

The Company will change its name to “Pyx Resources Limited”.

Oliver B. Hasler will be the proposed Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, and other
Board and management changes are to be made.

(together (Transaction))

Subject to the required approvals being received the Transaction will result in the Company changing
its activities to become a significant producer of mineral sands in Indonesia with significant
exploration upside.

In respect of the Company’s Papua New Guinea assets, given the low oil price and lack of
commercial prospectively, the Company has entered into an agreement with Ana and Bella Pty Ltd to
sell these assets, subject to shareholder approval and the Transaction completing, for a nominal
amount. This allows the Company to focus its efforts on the Takmur business.

The securities of the Company will remain suspended from trading until SPB has re-complied with
ASX’s requirements for admission and quotation, unless full disclosure can be made prior in
accordance with ASX requirements.

Takmur Pte. Ltd.

Overview

Takmur Pte. Ltd. (Takmur) is a Singapore based company that has exclusive rights to the operation
and management of a mineral sands tenement and production facility, which includes a premium
quality mineral sands deposit in Indonesia. Takmur’s objective is to build shareholder value by
adding premium quality mineral sands deposits to its portfolio both in Indonesia and globally. The
proceeds of the Capital Raising will be used to further develop the mineral sands tenement and
production facilities and look to acquire upside in other projects within the mineral sands industry.

Takmur is currently focused on the fully licensed mineral sands mine which is in production, having
achieved an export volume in excess of 3,000 tons of zircon in calendar year 2018, and with
significant upside potential in terms of prospective resources and the ability to increase production
capacity. Ultimately, Takmur aims to become a significant mineral sands player and supply world
markets with premium quality zircon, securing an important role in this rapidly growing industry.

Takmur Corporate Structure

In January 2019, PT Andary Usaha Makmur (PTAUM), a 99% owned subsidiary of Takmur, entered
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into an Exclusive Operation and Management Agreement with PT. Investasi Mandiri (PTIM), the
holder of IUP-OP zircon production and export license 16/DPE/IX/2010 (Mandiri Tenement) and
owner of a processing plant located 23 km to the south of the Mandiri Tenement. Under the
agreement PT AUM has committed to provide mining equipment, technical and management know-
how to develop the PTIM business. Under the terms of the agreement, PTIM and its shareholders
have delegated to PTAUM:

1) the power to determine the financial and operational policy of PTIM;
ii)  the right to appoint the majority of PTIM directors; and
iii)  the right to receive 95% of PTIM’s net profit on an annual basis as a compensation for the

services provided to PTIM.
The above agreement results in control of PTIM by PTAUM.

The Mandiri Tenement

The Mandiri Tenement consists of a concession area of 2,032 hectares located in Central Kalimantan
Province, Indonesia fully licensed for mineral sands exploration and premium grade zircon
production and export. The concession is owned by PTIM under mining permit Izin Usaha
Pertambangan — Operasi Produksi (IUP-OP) No. 16/DPE/IX/2010 issued by Bupati Gunung Mas on
2nd September 2010.

Figure 1: Location Plan of the Mandiri Tenement
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The Mandiri Tenement contains heavy mineral sand mineralisation, hosted in Holocene age alluvium
the product of an ancient Kahayan river channel and flood plain. The area is geologically relatively
simple with an alluvium layer generally of 2 to 6 m in thickness with some areas having up to 11 m in
thickness. The alluvium bed is overlain by a Miocene age coal-bearing sequence called the Werukin
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Formation.

The Mandiri Tenement is situated on the anticlinorium complex within Barito Basin with a pull apart
sedimentary basin, occurring in Paleogene age, in Central Kalimantan. The Mandiri Tenement
syncline stratigraphy consists of Tertiary sedimentary rocks sequences; Middle Miocene to Holocene
age.

Figure 2: Simplified Geological Plan of Kalimantan Island
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Generally, the heavy mineral sands deposit within the Mandiri Tenement is a deposit formed
commonly in flood plain environments by concentration (enrichment) of heavy minerals (mostly
zircon (ZrSiO4) — rutile (Ti02) — leucoxene (FeTiO3,TiO2) and ilmenite (FeTiO3)). Zircon is the
most valuable component; thereafter rutile, leucoxene and ilmenite.

The Mandiri Processing Plant

PTIM has constructed a processing plant located 23 km to the south of the current Mandiri Tenement
area. The plant incorporates standard heavy mineral processing equipment in the form of dryers,
gravity shaking tables, electro-static separators and electro-magnetic separators (PTIM Plant). The
current production capacity is in the order of 1,000 ton of premium Zircon per month (i.e. 12,000 ton
per annum).

The purpose of the processing is to separate the valuable heavy mineral sand from the non-valuable
and lighter gangue that makes up most of the input slurry.



«& South Pacific
#Y Resources Ltd

Figure 3(b): Electrostatic and

Figure 3(a): Shaking Table at the PTIM Plant  Electromagnetic Separators Installed at the
PTIM Plant

Proposed New Board and Management

The proposed directors and management have significant experience across various industries and in
numerous regions, including Europe, China, South East Asia and Australia.

OLIVER B. HASLER; Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Oliver is an accomplished chief executive, president and board member successfully leading world-
class businesses and brands spanning multiple industries and markets, including natural resources,
agro-industry, innovative manufacturing and various industrial sectors.

His most recent accomplishment was the successful transformation of the publicly-traded Spanish
packaging company, Europac Group, in a short span of 3 years into a mid-cap company which was
then acquired for a value exceeding US$2 billion. Major projects Oliver has participated in include
revision to the strategy of the Professional Division of Douwe Egberts, which is headquartered in the
Netherlands, and its joint venture with U.S.-based Mondelez, and the restructuring of France’s Arc
International.

Oliver has over 20 years of experience of doing business in Asia, where he has built and operated
factories, as well as setting up distribution networks throughout the region while managing significant
export and import operations.

Oliver is a Swiss citizen with a degree in Materials Engineering and a Master’s degree in Metallurgy
from the Federal Institute of Technology in Zurich, Switzerland and an MBA with Honors from the
Universidad Iberoamericana in Mexico City. He is fluent in English, German, Spanish and French.

ALVIN TAN; Director

Alvin will stay on as Director following the Transaction.

Alvin has over twenty-five years’ experience in Australia and Asia, including mergers, acquisitions,
capital raisings and listings on ASX, the Alternative Investments Market (AIM) of the London Stock
Exchange, Bursa and German Stock Exchange. Alvin commenced his employment at KPMG in
Kuala Lumpur from 1993-1995 as a financial consultant.

Returning to Australia, Alvin worked with the stockbroking firm of DJ Carmichael before pursuing
other business interests. He is a founding director of various companies which are now listed on
ASX.
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Alvin currently serves on the board of ASX listed Advanced Share Registry Ltd and BKM
Management Ltd. He also has interests in companies involved in technology, mining, exploration,
property development, plantation and corporate services both in Australia and overseas.

Alvin received a Bachelor of Commerce with Honours from the University of Western Australia.

BAKHOS GEORGES; Director

Bakhos has more than forty years of experience in management and operation in the wholesale, retail
and pharmaceutical sectors with significant direct involvement in internationally focused import and
export operations.

Bakhos has received the Order of Australia Medal (OAM) in 2019 for service to the community. He
currently serves as Director of Saint Charbel’s Aged Care Centre and is a Justice of the Peace (JP) in
and for the State of New South Wales.

Bakhos received a B.Ph.Chem from USMV in 1982.

GARY J. ARTMONT; Director

Gary has forty-six years of experience in the mining business operating in 21 countries and is familiar
with all aspects of mineral exploration from grassroots to project pre-feasibility studies through to
mining operations.

Gary is a fellow member of AUSIMM #312718 qualified to write NI 43-101 or JORC Competent
Person reports. He is experienced in the management of large multifaceted regional and detailed
exploration programs in overseas locations with 14 years working in tropical environments.

Gary has worked as a geologist and project manager for multiple organizations over the past four
decades, including Geostar Consulting. Rio Tinto, PT Pelsart Indonesia, PT Freeport Indonesia and
Ivanhoe Mining China.

Gary received a Bachelor Degree from Waterloo University, Ontario.



(E soutn pacific

SPB has entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement for the acquisition of Takmur with the Vendors
of Takmur and subject to conditions precedent, as set out below.

The Transaction

The key terms of the Transaction, which will be subject to shareholder approval, are:

1. SPB will conduct a 20 to 1 consolidation of its existing issued capital. This will reduce the
issued capital of SPB to approximately 18,284,711 fully paid ordinary shares, assuming all
Resolutions are passed at the Company’s General Meeting to be held on 20 August 2019
(Shares);

2. SPB will acquire Takmur via the issue of 210,274,171 (79.8%) Shares (post-consolidation) at
an issue price of AUDO0.40 per Share to the shareholders of Takmur (Vendors);

3. SPB will seek to raise AUD14 million through the issue of 35,000,000 Shares at a price of
AUDO0.40 per Share under a prospectus (Capital Raising Shares) and seek re-admission to
the Official List of the ASX under Chapters 1 and 2 of the Listing Rules.

On completion of the Transaction SPB will change its name to “Pyx Resources Limited”.
Additionally, the current Board of SPB will resign and be replaced by new Board members as set out
in this Announcement, with the exception of Alvin Tan who will stay on as Director following the
Transaction.

The Company will undertake the appropriate background checks on the proposed Directors and other
individuals prior to any appointment as directors, in accordance with the ASX Corporate Governance
Council’s Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations.

SPB has undertaken appropriate enquiries into the assets and liabilities, financial position and
performance, profit and losses, and prospects of the target to be satisfied that the Transaction is in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

It is not currently proposed that the Capital Raising be underwritten. The Lead Manager on the
Transaction in Australia is Indian Ocean Corporate Pty Ltd, with Cedrus Investments Limited as
corporate adviser.

SPB estimates that it will pay total fees within the range of USD1.8m to USD2.8m inclusive of costs
relating to the Capital Raising, associated advisory fees, legal fees and ASX fees, to parties not
related to SPB. Full details of fees payable will be set out in the notice of meeting seeking SPB
shareholder approval for the Transaction.

Pro-forma Financial Information is contained in Appendix A which outlines the effect of the
Transaction on the current assets and equity of the Company.

Financial information for the past two financial years of PTIM is set out in Appendix B. The
financial information of Takmur and PTAUM will be provided at a later stage.

Vendors of Takmur

The Vendors of Takmur and their ownership in SPB, should the Transaction complete, are as follows:

Vendor Name No. of Takmur | % in Takmur Transaction % held of SPB after the
Shares held Shares (Post- Transaction, Post-
Consolidation) | Consolidation and Capital

Raising

Phoenix Fund Solutions Ltd. 1,100 44% 92,520,635 35.1%

Takmur SPC Ltd. 1,000 40% 84,109,669 31.9%

Sinowide International Limited 135 5.4% 11,354,805 4.3%

Sino Ventures Limited 130 5.4% 11,354,805 4.3%

Unico Holdings Limited 135 5.2% 10,934,257 4.2%

TOTAL 2,500 100% 210,274,171 79.8%

*The Vendors in the above table are unrelated to each other, except for being shareholders of Takmur.
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Phoenix Fund Solutions Ltd and Takmur SPC Ltd will hold greater than 20% of the Company post-
Transaction.

Conditions Precedent

Completion of the Transaction is subject to and conditional upon satisfaction of the following
conditions by or before 31 December 2019 (or such other dates as agree between the parties):

1. completion of due diligence investigations by both SPB and Takmur;

2. SPB shareholders approving all the resolutions contained in the Notice of Meeting issued on
17 July 2019;

3. SPB complying with Chapters 1 and 2 of the Listing Rules and obtaining confirmation from
ASX that it will re-admit SPB;

4. the parties obtaining all relevant approvals, including SPB shareholder approval, board
approval, and any third party consents necessary to implement the Transaction; and

5. no government or regulatory intervention that would prevent completion of the Transaction.

Public Offer and Re-admission to Official List

Conditional upon approval of the Transaction by shareholders, SPB will issue a prospectus for the
Capital Raising. As the Company will be changing the nature and scale of its business, it will be
required to re-comply with ASX’s requirements for admission and quotation. Whilst SPB is confident
that it will satisfy the ASX Listing Rules requirements for admission and quotation, there is no
guarantee that ASX will re-admit the Company to the official list.

ASX has an absolute discretion in deciding whether or not to re-admit the entity to the official list and
to quote its securities and therefore the Transaction may not proceed if ASX exercises that discretion.

In the event that SPB Shares are tradeable prior to completion of the Transaction then investors
should take into account of these uncertainties in deciding whether or not to buy or sell SPB’s Shares.

Further information regarding the Transaction and the change of activities will be provided in the
notice of meeting and the Prospectus to be dispatched in due course.

It is not expected at this stage that any substantive waivers will be required from either ASIC or ASX.

Shareholder Meeting

To implement the Transaction, SPB will prepare a notice of meeting seeking shareholder approval
for, among other things, the acquisition of Takmur.

The Company will dispatch to shareholders a notice of meeting setting out various resolutions and
further information relating to the proposed Transaction (Notice of Meeting). A detailed explanatory
statement will accompany the Notice of Meeting and will be distributed to all SPB shareholders prior
to the meeting in accordance with the Corporations Act and the ASX Listing Rules.

The Company presently envisages that the resolutions to be put to shareholders will include (but not
be limited to):

1. Approval for the change of nature and scale of the activities of the Company;

2. Approval for the consolidation of the capital of the Company;

Approval for the issue of the consideration Shares to the Vendors, including approval under
item 7 of s. 611 of the Corporations Act;

Approval for a change in name of the Company to “Pyx Resources Limited”;

Approval of a securities incentive plan;

Approval for the issue of performance shares to key management;

Appointment of new Directors.

98]
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The Company expects to dispatch the Notice of Meeting to shareholders shortly following review by
ASIC and ASX.
Indicative Capital Structure

The table below details the Company’s current capital structure and its proposed indicative capital
structure after the completion of the Transaction:

Number of Shares Percentage of
ownership

SPB Ownership Prior to the Transaction
Current SPB Shareholders (pre-consolidation)* 365,694,211 100.00%
Current SPB Shareholders (post-consolidation) 18,284,711 100.00%
SPB Ownership Post Transaction
Current SPB Shareholders (post-consolidation) 18,284,711 6.9%
Issue of Shares to Vendors 210,274,171 79.8%
New shareholders under Capital Raising 35,000,000 13.3%
Total Shares on issue Post Transaction 263,558,882 100.00%

* Subject to rounding of individual holders and assuming all resolutions are passed at the Company’s
General Meeting to be held on 20 August 2019

On 17 July 2019 the Company issued a Notice of General Meeting for a meeting to be held on
20 August 2019. At this meeting the Company will seek approval from shareholders to issue shares,
at an issue price of AUDO0.015 per Share in payment of trade creditors and to redeem convertible
notes. Assuming all of these resolutions are passed, the Company will issue 200,178,900 Shares,
which have been included in the table above as pre-consolidation Shares.

In addition to the table above, the Company has 10,750,000 unlisted options (pre-consolidation) on
issue with an exercise price of AUDO0.05 and an expiry date of 22 February 2023. Post-consolidation
these will total 537,500 unlisted options with an exercise price of AUD1.00.

The Company will also seek to issue 6,500,000 performance rights to management of the Company
for the issue of up to a maximum of 8,125,000 Shares in the Company over three years, depending
upon the achievement of performance milestones.

Advantages of the Transaction

Completion of the Transaction will restructure the Company's issued capital and net asset base,
providing working capital, a new board and business direction. The Directors are of the view that the
change in nature of the Company to a heavy mineral sands producer will deliver value to existing and
new shareholders.

Risks of the Transaction

As set out in the Indicative Capital Structure above the Transaction will result in significant dilution
to existing shareholders and while the Directors are of the view the Transaction will be beneficial, the
business of heavy mineral sands development and production has inherent risk which cannot be
avoided.

The key risks can be summarised as follows:

1. Completion risk - Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement SPB has agreed to acquire
100% of the issued share capital of Takmur, with completion subject to the fulfilment of
certain conditions precedent, as set out above. There is a risk the conditions precedent for
completion of the acquisition can’t be fulfilled and, in turn, that completion of the
Transaction does not occur.
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If the Transaction is not completed, SPB will incur costs relating to advisors and other costs
without any material benefit being achieved.

Re-quotation of shares on ASX - The Transaction constitutes a significant change in the
nature and scale of the Company’s activities and the Company therefore must seek to re-
comply with Chapters 1 and 2 of the ASX Listing Rules as if it were seeking admission to the
Official List of ASX. There is a risk that the Company may not be able to meet the
requirements of the ASX for re-quotation of its Shares on the ASX. Should this occur, the
Shares will not be able to be traded on the ASX until such time as those requirements can be
met, if at all. Shareholders may be prevented from trading their Shares should the Company
be suspended until such time as it does re-comply with the ASX Listing Rules.

In the event the Company does not receive conditional approval for re-quotation of its
securities on ASX, the Transaction will not be implemented.

Share Liquidity Risk - The Company will have 365,694,211 Shares on issue (assuming all
Resolutions are passed at the General Meeting to be held on 20 August 2019 and on a pre-
Consolidation basis). Subject to shareholder approval the Company’s Shares will be
consolidated on a one for twenty basis into approximately 18,284,711 Shares (subject to
rounding of fractional entitlements). On Completion, the Company will issue a further
245,687,262 Shares. A portion of the shares issued to Vendors will be subject to escrow
restrictions in accordance with Chapter 9 of the ASX. This could be considered an increased
liquidity risk as a large portion of issued capital may not be able to be tradable freely for a
period of time. Conversely, if the Company is successful in achieving some or all of its
objectives, this relative lack of liquidity may lead to volatility in the price of the Company’s
securities.

Reliance on Key Personnel - The responsibility of overseeing the day-to-day operations and
the strategic management of the Company depends substantially on its senior management
and its key personnel. There can be no assurance given that there will be no detrimental
impact on the Company if one or more of these employees cease their employment.

Future Capital Needs - The Company’s ability to effectively implement its business strategy
will depend in part on its ability to generate income from its operations, and/or to raise
additional funds. The need and amount for any additional funds required is currently
unknown and will depend on numerous factors related to its current and future activities
(including any future acquisitions).

There can be no assurance that funding will be available on satisfactory terms or at all. Any
inability to obtain finance will adversely affect the business and financial condition of the
Company and its performance. If required, the Company would seek additional funds through
equity, debt or Joint Venture financing.

If additional funds are raised through the issuance of new equity or equity-linked securities of
the Company other than on a pro-rata basis to existing sharcholders, the percentage
ownership of shareholders may be reduced. Shareholders may experience subsequent
dilution. There can be no guarantee that any capital raisings will be successful If the
Company is unable to obtain additional financing as needed, it may result in the delay or
indefinite postponement if the Company’s activities.

Mining licenses frequently contain government-mandated capital, social and other such
commitments which must be met by the license holder in order to maintain the license.
Annually set capital commitments are the norm for such licenses. If the Company cannot
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secure funding for these commitments (either through internal cashflow, equity, debt, Joint
Venture financing or other mechanisms), the license may be at risk.

Country risk - The Company's operations initially will predominantly be in the Republic of
Indonesia whose economies are subject to many global and internal forces beyond the control
of the Company. The Company and its operations may be impacted by changes in the general
economic and political climate in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates and on a
global basis that could impact on economic growth, the reformation of government structure
or industry, commodity prices, interest rates, the rate of inflation, taxation and tariff laws and
domestic security which may affect the value and viability of any mineral sands activity
conducted by the Company.

Investment in Emerging Markets - The Indonesian economy is vulnerable to market
downturns and economic slowdowns elsewhere in the world, and, generally, investing in
emerging markets such as Indonesia involves greater risk than investing in more developed
markets, including in some cases significant legal, economic and political risks. Investors
should also note that emerging markets such as Indonesia are subject to rapid change. Global
financial or economic crises in any large emerging market country tend to adversely affect
prices in equity markets of most or all emerging market countries as investors move their
money to more stable, developed markets.

Devaluation or Appreciation of Currencies - The external value of the various currencies is
affected by changes in policies of the government and to international economic and political
developments. In addition, financial markets in Indonesia have in the past experienced severe
volatility. As a result, the Indonesia currency (IDR) has been subject to significant
devaluation from time to time. Movements in the value of currencies could have an adverse
effect on the Company's operations and accordingly its profitability.

Exploration and Development Risks - The business of mineral sands exploration, project
development and production, by its nature, contains elements of significant risk with no
guarantee of success. Notwithstanding the experience, knowledge and careful evaluation a
company brings to an exploration project there is no assurance that economically viable
mineral sands resources will be identified. Even if identified, other factors such as technical
difficulties, geological conditions, adverse changes in government policy or legislation or
lack of access to sufficient funding may mean that the resource is not economically
recoverable or may otherwise preclude the Company from successfully exploiting the
resource.

Ultimate and continuous success of exploration and development activities is dependent on
many factors such as:

* the discovery and/or acquisition of economically recoverable reserves;

* access to adequate capital for project development;

e design and construction of efficient development and production infrastructure within
capital expenditure budgets;

*  securing and maintaining title to interests;

*  obtaining consents and approvals necessary for the conduct of mineral sands exploration,
development and production;

*  securing suitable plant and equipment, particularly given equipment utilisation rates are
high in the current period of global exploration/production activity, hence competition
for such equipment may also be high; and

* access to competent operational management and prudent financial administration,
including the availability and reliability of appropriately skilled and experienced

10
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employees, contractors and consultants.

*  Whether or not income will result from projects undergoing exploration and
development programs depends on successful exploration and establishment of
production facilities. Factors including costs, actual mineral sands resources, grade,
transportation and reliability and commodity prices affect successful project
development and operations.

Mineral sands exploration, development and production operations are subject to all the risks
and hazards typically associated with such operations, including hazards such as fire,
explosions, industrial disputes, cave-ins, unexpected shortages or increases in the cost of
consumables, spare parts, plant and equipment, mechanical failure and breakdown, blow outs,
environmental hazards such as accidental sour gas releases and spills, ruptures, discharge of
toxic gases or geological uncertainty. The occurrence of any of these risks could result in
legal proceedings against the Company and substantial losses due to injury or loss of life,
damage to or destruction of property, natural resources or equipment, pollution or other
environmental damage, clean up responsibilities, regulatory investigation, and penalties or
suspension of operations. Damage occurring to third parties as a result of such risks may give
rise to claims against the Company.

There is no assurance that any exploration on current or future interests will result in the
discovery of an economic deposit of mineral sands. Even if an apparently viable deposit is
identified, there is no guarantee that it can be economically developed.

In addition, the Company will be subject to multi- jurisdictional compliance with
governmental regulations in relation to licence conditions, the environment and operational
conduct

Operational Risk - The Republic of Indonesia in which the Company will, following the
Transaction, conduct operations in is a developing country and may be subject to instability
(political, economic, or otherwise).

Risks include, among other matters:

*  economic instability;

* trade barriers or the imposition of taxes;

* changes in the regulatory environment;

* changes in mineral sands exportation and transportation regulations;

* imposition of additional obligations/restriction on foreign investors;

e (difficulties with staffing and/or managing any foreign operations;

*  issues or restriction on the free transfer of funds;

* technology export or import;

* delays in dealing across borders caused by customers or governmental agencies;
* local currency devaluations; and

* nationalisation or expropriation of the Company’s assets.

As such, investors are advised to be aware of the risks of investing in the Company given its
operations in this area.

Mineral Sands Products Price Volatility - If the Company achieves success leading to greater
production, the revenue it will derive through the sale of commodities exposes the potential

11
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income of the Company to commodity price and exchange rate risks. Commodity prices
fluctuate and are affected by many factors beyond the control of the Company.

The demand for, and price of mineral sands is highly dependent on a variety of factors,
including international supply and demand, the level of consumer product demand, weather
conditions, actions taken by governments and international cartels, and global economic and
political developments.

Fluctuations in mineral sands prices and, in particular, a material decline in the price of zircon
may have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Investors should note that the prices in the current mineral sands market are regarded as being
low, with little obvious short term indication of recovery. Takmur is not involved in any high
operating cost projects such as offshore developments.

Investors should be aware that further decreases in zircon price levels may ultimately affect
the viability of exploration activities within the Company’s focus areas, which could result in
a negative effect on the Company’s future cash flow and the viability of potential future
projects, which in turn may affect the value of the Company’s Shares.

Contractual Disputes - With respect to this issue, the Directors are unable to predict the risk
of:

* financial failure or default by a participant in any joint venture to which the Company
may become a party; or

* insolvency or other managerial failure by any of the operators and contractors used by
the Company in its exploration activities; or

* insolvency or other managerial failure by any of the other service providers used by the
Company or its operators for any activity; or

* title and payment obligations.

Under the relevant joint venture agreements and certain other contractual agreements to
which the Company may in the future become party, the Company is or may become subject
to payment and other obligations. If any contractual obligations are not complied with when
due, in addition to any other remedies which may be available to other parties, this could
result in dilution or forfeiture of interests held by the Company.

Environmental Risks - The Company's activities will be subject to the environmental risks
inherent in the mineral sands industry. The Company will be subject to Indonesian
environmental laws and regulations in connection with operations it may pursue in the
mineral sands industry. Environmental compliance is an ongoing liability of the Company.
The Company intends to conduct its activities in an environmentally responsible manner and
in accordance with all applicable laws. However, the Company may be the subject of
accidents or unforeseen circumstances that could subject the Company to extensive liability.

The Company may also become liable for environmental damage caused by previous owners
of any subsoil licence areas the Company will hold. As a result, substantial liabilities to third
parties or governmental entities may be incurred, the payment of which could reduce or
eliminate funds available for acquisitions, exploration and development or cause the
Company to suffer losses.

12
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Further, the Company may require approval from the relevant authorities before it can
undertake activities that are likely to impact the environment. Failure to obtain such
approvals will prevent the Company from undertaking its desired activities.

These and other impacts that the Company’s operations may have on the environment, as
well as exposures to hazardous substances or wastes associated with the Company’s
operations and environmental conditions at the Company’s properties, could result in costs
and liabilities that would have a material adverse impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Company.

A violation of environmental laws relating to a mine or other operating facilities, or failure to
comply with the instructions of the relevant environmental authorities, could lead to, amongst
other things, a temporary shutdown of all or a portion of the mine or relevant facility, a loss
of the right to operate the relevant facility, the imposition of costly compliance procedures
and fines, or serious reputational damage to the Company.

Environmental legislation and permitting requirements and the manner in which these are
enforced are likely to evolve in a manner which will increase standards and enforcement
criteria, as well as increase fines and penalties for non-compliance.

The Directors are unable to predict the extent and effect of additional environmental laws and
regulations that may be adopted in the future, and if environmental standards evolve in such a
manner, this could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of
operations, financial condition and prospects.

Use of Funds
The proceeds of the Capital Raising, together with existing cash reserves, will be used to:

* Expand current mining and production facilities through the addition of state of the art
equipment and machinery, in order to enable the Company to ramp up its production
capacity;

* Enable the Company to upgrade its logistic and organizational infrastructure in order to
meet substantial demand from its customers;

* Provide the Company with sufficient working capital to finance the growth of its
operations;

* Sustain the cost of the Transaction and the Capital Raising and other legal, compliance
and administrative costs.

The intended Use of Finds raised under the Capital Raising is as follows:

Use of Funds Amount Percentage
(AUD Million) (%)

CAPEX (in-house mining, by product processing, by- 7.0 50%

products license, exploration, facilities upgrade

RTO expenses 34 24%

General working capital / administrative expenses 3.6 26%

TOTAL 14.0 100%
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Indicative Timetable

The following is an indicative timetable for the completion of the Transaction:

Event Date
(Week Commencing)

Despatch notice of general meeting to SPB shareholders 26 August 2019
Lodge Prospectus with ASIC & ASX 2 September 2019
Opening date of Capital Raising 2 September 2019
General Meeting 23 September 2019
Closing date of Capital Raising 30 September 2019
Settlement date 7 October 2019
Re-quotation date 21 October 2019

The above timetable is indicative only and may change. The Company reserves the right to vary any and all of the dates
and times set out above without notice subject to the Listing Rules and the Corporations Act..

The Board of SPB will continue to provide shareholders with updates regarding the Transaction in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Transaction will result in a change in nature and scale of the Company's activities from an oil and
gas exploration and production company to mineral sands exploration and production. It will require
the Company to re-comply with ASX’s requirements for admission and quotation and therefore the
Transaction may not proceed. ASX has an absolute discretion in deciding whether or not to re-admit
the Company to the official list and to quote its securities and therefore the Transaction may not
proceed if ASX exercises that discretion. Investors should take account of these uncertainties in
deciding whether or not to buy or sell the Company’s securities.

ASX takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement.

The Company confirms that it is in compliance with its continuous disclosure requirements under
Listing Rule 3.1.

- ENDS ---

Domenic Martino

Director

South Pacific Resources
dmartino@southpacificresourceslimited.com
+612 83199299

Forward-looking Statements

This Announcement has been made by the authority of the Board of the Company and may contain
forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking statements contained in this document are not
guarantees of future performance. Such statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Company. Readers should not place
undue reliance upon any forward-looking statements and the Company disclaims any responsibility
for any reader who does so.
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Appendix A: Pro forma statement of financial position

Historical Consolidated Statement of Financial Position of both SPB and Takmur as at 31 December 2018

adjusted to reflect the Transaction, the Capital Raising and other material transactions

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Financial assets

Other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Rental bond

Plant and equipment

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Other current liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve
Accumulated earnings/(losses)
Non-controlling interest

TOTAL EQUITY

SPB

Actual

Audited
31 December 2018

uss$

Notes

1 2,935
9,868
12,670

25,473

34,500

514
35,014
60,487

2 1,529,664
3 500,091

2,029,755

2,029,755

(1,969,268)

4 6,056,811
415,012

433,230

5 (8,874,321)
6 .
(1,969,268)

Takmur
Consolidated

Actual

Audited

31 December 2018
us$

23,718
8,370
520,713
552,801

598,589
598,589
1,151,390

132,447

27,487
189,476
349,410

20,303
369,713

781,677

734

780,943

781,677

SPB post-

Transaction and

Capital Raising
Pro-forma

Consolidated

Unaudited

31 December 2018

us$

7,370,543
18,238
12,670

520,713

7,922,164

34,500
599,103
633,603

8,555,767

193,729

27,487
189,476
410,692

20,303
430,995

8,124,772

14,084,355

(5,967,392)
7,809
8,124,772



Note 1: Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

Sale of Papua New Guinea assets
Issue of Shares under Capital Raising *
Share offer costs

Transaction costs

*This assumes that A$14,000,000 (US$
9,660,000) is raised through the Capital Raising

Note 2: Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables
Conversion of trade creditors to equity™

Note 3: Borrowings
Borrowings
Conversion of convertible note to equity™

#This assumes all resolutions passed at SPB'’s
General Meeting to be held on 20 August 2019

Note 4: Issued Capital

SPB and Takmur issued capital

Proposed acquisition (post-consolidation):
18,284,711 ordinary shares at A$0.40
(US$0.276) pursuant to the Transaction *
Proposed Public Offer (post-consolidation):
Issue of 35,000,000 shares at A$0.40
(US$0.276) per ordinary share under Capital
Raising (net of costs)

Non-controlling Interest arising from Takmur
acquisition of PTIM

Note 5: Accumulated earnings/(losses)
Accumulated earnings/(losses)

Gain on sale of Papua New Guinea assets

Transaction Loss

Transaction Costs

Costs associated with 35,000,000 Capital
Raising

Note 6: Non-controlling interest
Non-controlling Interest arising from Takmur
acquisition of PTIM

SPB

Actual

Audited
31 December 2018
us$

2,935

2,935

1,529,664
1,529,664
500,091

500,091

6,056,811

(8,874,321)

Takmur
(Consolidated)

Actual

Audited
31 December 2018
us$

23,718

23,718

132,447

132,447
27,487

27,487

734

780,943

SPB post-
Transaction and
Capital Raising
Pro-forma
Consolidated
Unaudited
31 December 2018
uss$

26,653
690
9,660,000
(847,300)
(1,469,500)
7,370,543

1,662,111
(1,468,382)
193,729

527,578
(500,091)
27,487

734

5,046,580

9,044,850

(7,809)

14,084,355

780,943
690

(5,047,375)
(1,469,500)

(232,150)

(5,967,392)

7,809

*The acquisition has been accounted for using the principles of reverse acquisition accounting under AASB 3 — Business
Combinations since the substance of the transaction is that the existing shareholders of Takmur effectively gain control of SPB.
Essentially the price paid for the acquisition of SPB by Takmur is the shares currently held by SPB shareholders — post
consolidation (18,284,711) by the re-listing price of A$0.40 (or US$0.276), being A$7,313,884 (or US$5,046,580).
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‘Snpendix B: Financiai information for two Financial Years

‘. Your direstors present their report on the company for the financial vear ended 31 December

2018,

O Direstors

The names of tha directors In office st any time during or since the end of the year are:
Bahing Diimat
Vifira Puira

- Direclors have been in office since the start of the financiat year o the date of iiﬁ;i’s';repor‘t“

unless otherwise siated.

Reviaw of Operations

The profit of he company for the finandial vear after providing for income fax amounied e
USDS302,766 {2017 Loss of USDS18,172): ‘

A review of the operations of the company during the financial yea{ and the resu%is'éfkhossl o
operations shows that in 2018 the company significantly increased its mining, conceniration
and processing volumes. The company solely fotused on processing raw materials fron its

- own deposits, wilh revenus increasing from USDS1,217,814 to UBDS4,760,828.

.. Significant Changes in the State of &ifairs

BTN

Mo significant changes i the combany’s siate of affairs oocuired during the financial year.

¢ Principal Activities

. The principal activilies of the cormpany dufing the financial vear was being fhe holder of a
| mining concession related {0 2 mineral sands deposit losated in the Central Kalimanian

Province of indonesia, with an area of 2,052 hectargs. in conjunction with ihis, the Company

& operated a processing plant squippad to produce premium Zircon (85.5 grade).

o significant change in the nature of these activities occurred duning the year,

© Events Subsesuent to the End of the Reporting Feriod

Apart from the matter disciosed In note 18 of the financial statements, no olher matiers or
circurnstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affecied or
may significantly affect the operations of the'company, the resulfs of those opgrations, of the
state of affairs of the company in future financial years. S

Likely Developments and Expecisd Resulis of Operations

Likely developments in the operations of the company and the expected resulls of those
operations in future financial vears have not been included in ihis report as the inclusion of
such information is Bikely to resilt in urweasonabie nrejudice 1o the company.

Environmental Reguiation o <
The company’s opérations are not reguiated by any significant environmental regulation tnder
o law of the Commonwealth of of a slale or terilory.




Bividends :
No dividends were paid or declared during the financial year,

Options

NG oofions over issued shares of interests in the company were granted during or siﬂz:’za the
end of the financial year and there were no options oulstanding at the date of this report.

No shares were issued during or since the end of the year as a result of the exercise of an
option over unissued shares or inleresis.

indemnification of Officers e s
Mo indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the
financial vear, for any person who is of has been an officer of auditor of the company.

Proceadings on Behall of the Company

No person has applied for leave of court to bring proceedings on zse’“;a;f of the company o
intervene in any ﬁmca%dmgk to which the company & 2 parly for the purpose - of taking

. responsiniiity on behatf of the compsany for all or any part of those pm@eerimg:,

The company was neta parly o any such pr oceedings during the vear

This directors’ report 18 signed in sccordance with a v Si}!dné‘:{‘ of the Board of Direclorg:

DHractor

. Baning Dilmat
Dated this 2ard dayof Apri

o]
fo
i

(o]




- $ 3
 Revenue 4,760,828 1217814
Cost of spies {3,548 873y {786,157}
. Gross profit 1,212,265 8
Oiher revenus -
Depreciation and amortisation {60,218}
Finanes costs : {25945} {11,858}
Consuiting and professional expenses ‘ {(120,849) (147 877)
Repgirs and maintenance exXpanses ' {38,861} f {57,543)
Ereight and cartage expenses (208513} (313.512)
Adminisiration éxgeﬁs&s (158974 43243
Commissions paid (29624} (3,113
Employee benefits expense 1434805 145,008)
. Compliancs costs {10,085y - {(11.022)
| Ofher expenses , , {54,150)  (28,086)
Profit/ {loss) befors Income tax 403688 {17,352) .
Income tax expense 3 (100822)  (1.820)
Profit { {luss) for the year 302,766 (18.172)
- Other comprehensive income / {loss) '
T Olher comprehensive income for iifxepefi‘gé, netofisx = - -
Totaiother ﬁémpr’aﬁgﬂsive 352{’;;}2’%3& ifloss)fortheyear - e -
'\ Total comprehensivs income ! {loss) for the year 302765 (191723

HNote 2018

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements,




-~ ASSETS

-~ CURRENT ASSETS

« Cash and cash equivalents
 Trade and other receivables
- inventories

| TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
< Property, plant and eaquipment
. TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABIITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

. Borrowings

Current tax liabilitiss

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

. Bomowings

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
 TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

. EQUITY

issued capital

" Reserves

- Retained earnings
- TOTAL EQUITY

Noie

4

(o)

&

m,?'

41
12

817

ey S
o

a7ig g
7.8%8 47,382
520,713 86,285
557067 143,541
598,650 632,586
508,585 632,586
1,180,856 778,177
132,447 81,875
07,487 208.719
180478 08408
340440 475,803
20,303 20,541
20,303 20,541
38¢.713 . 497.344
780,643 278833
72,490 72,490
522,954 323810
185,498 {117.267)
278,833

780,043

The accompanying notes form part of these financial tatermnents,




‘Balance at 1 January 2017
issue of ordinary shares
Profit for the year

- Additions to reserve

Balance g1 31 December

Balanee a1 Janoary 2018

. tesue of ordinary shores
- Profit for the year

 Additions to reseive

" Balance at 31 December
2018 ~

Mois

Y
| X% B

12

Issusd

Forsign

Capital

- (3,234) 526,338

 Capital  Retained . S
{Ordinary  Earnings Egggsgf Reserve ot
Shares) ' e e

$ $ $ 3 s
72,480 (98,0955 1,937 174,078 150,408
- 197 - - ey
L " (615) 148212 147,597
72,485 {117,267 1322 322288 278,833
72450  {(117.267 1,322 322,288 278833
-oBuRTEE - - 302768
g _— (4,756) 204100 199,344
72480 185499 780,843

- The accompanying notes form part of these finencial stalements.




Mote o048 247

3 R
. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
' Receipts from cuslomers : 4,800,554 1,238,803
(fl'."' Payments to suppliers and employess ‘ (4850,229)  {1,409877)
Interest paid 18,788y (9.902)
_ Finance cos's paid ; {2,859y (1986}
S income tay paid {88874y : (iQ,éGQ}
Net cash provided by operating aclivities 15 35,724 - {195,532}
| CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES }
Proceeds frory sale of property, plant and equipment A3 e
Payments for property, plant and equipment . *{é&ﬁ%}'
Met cash used in investing activities 1,314 {48,565
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ,
 Proceeds from | {repayments of) borrowings {8,521} 281686
Repayments of finsnce lease ' ' Cous3tn o
pet cash provided by {used in} financing activities , g {21838) 270580
Hetincrease ncashheld k . coA5888 o BBB3
Cash at beginning of financial vear ; ' ; c 5934 4834
Effect of movement in sxchangs rales on éas%é held 1sIs 83y
Cash at end of financial year : 4 237i8 9934

The acoompanying notes form part of these financial stafements.




NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIER

T Investasi iﬁan‘diri is & company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in inég},nes?a‘; S

Tha al statements were authorised for issue on 23 April 2018 by the directors of the
cam;:aang. ~

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historics! cost
‘convention except as modified by the revalua ation of financial assets and financial liabiliies at
fair value through profit or loss and are in accordance = with International Financial a;x}mng
Standards {IFRSg™ issued by the Intermnational Accounting qtandams Board {"?AS‘;E“} and*‘
IFRIC interpretations issued by the IFRE Interpretations Committee. ,

‘the preparation of the financial sislements in. conformity with IERS requires the use . of
sslimates and assumptions that sffect the reporded amouiis of assely and labilities af the dale
of the financial statements and the reported amounis of revenues and expenses during the
. reporting period. Although these estimales ae based on management's best knowledge of the
- amount, event or actions, actual results ulimately may. differ from those estimates,

© The financial statemenis arg preseniad In United Siate Dollars USD.

Ac«::cunim Policies
C @ income Tax

The incoms tax-expense { rzcema} for the y:’ar c&m;ﬁises‘ curent iﬂ;ﬁ*ometg*: ap@nsa;
{incomal and GQ?&%‘%’@Q tax expense {income). : s ‘

~Current tax and deferred fax gre mwgmsﬁzﬁ in profit or loss ox sept io the &x*&’xt *i”e’ﬁ% y~
relate to @ business combination or ars r»—cogmsed 3??‘@0&}’ in equity or in other
comprehensive income. Current lax fiabililes {assets) are therefore measursd &t the
amounts expectad o ‘st« paid 1o gf&i‘.ﬂ%z‘eﬁ fmm; %%w relevant taxation auihmtfy using tax
rates (and tax faws) thal have boen enaéter:i msﬁbfxiaﬂf;veiy éﬂacieé by the end of the
‘reporting pwﬁ(}é : S .
Deferred income fax e/;:smnse lects me&:emﬁﬁts in deferred tax. asce aad;défermd ;a;@ e
,zabﬁ%ty balances during the year a well as unused tax losses. : : e

Current and deferrad income tax expense (income) is charged or cremaed d;ra»ﬂy o

squily instead of profit or loss when the tax relales to items that are cradited or charged
directly o eqully.

Defarred lax assets and Habiliics ave caloulated at the fax rales that are wgﬂateu e
apply fo the period when the asset is realised or the uai:nhiy is settled and their

me, surarnent aiso reflects the manner in wamh management expects 10 recover or sx,ztin' o

the carrving amountofihe related assel or Fabilit g

With respect to land and bulldings measured at fair value, the related defer r«:d ta 3&:&’:}
or defarred tax assel s megsurad on ‘zhe basis that the carrying amoz.z‘i of the ass et wil
be recovarad entirely zhmuﬁh sals, ,

Dedorred fax nscely 1o afn o Wmmporany differences and mu:»ed oy 29 565 are
recognised only to the exient that it is probable that future taxable profit will & Ja vax bie.
zoainstwhich the bensfils of the deferred terasssi can be utilis a4, E :

Where temporary differences exist in relation to investments in subsidiaries, %ranchﬂs :
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and fiabifities are not recognisad whare
the dming of the reversal of the temporary difference can be conbrolled and it s not
probiable hat the reversal will ocour in the foresesable future.

%




NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

£

Current 1ax gssels and liabitiies are offset whers 2 lsgal Eﬁfi“;m&mbﬁ? right of seb-off
exisls and # g intended that net setllement or xémmiaﬁe@w: realisation and setllerment of -

the respective assel and llabifity will coour. Deferred tax assets and linbifities are offset

where: {i} 2 legally enforceable right of sel-off exists; and (i) the deferred 2k asseis and
liabliities relsle o income taxes levied by the same ta xation authority on elther the same
laxable entity or different taxable entiies. where it is intended that net settfement or
simuliansous realisation and setilemsnt of the respactive asset and lisbility wilt oocur in
fujure peyicds in which significent amounts of deferred tax aasets ot Habifiles ars
expected to be recoverad or seitied.

Falr Valus of Assels

The comipany measures some of s assets ot fair vaiue, Fair value is ﬁze pﬂre the
company would receive to sell an assst in an orderly (i unforced) transaction bmtween
independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.

As fair value is a markeb-besed measure, the closest equivalent observable market
oricing information Is used to determine fair value. Adjustiments o market valuss may be
made having regard lo the characteristics of the specific assel. The fair values of asssis
that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more vaiuation
iechnigues. These valuation techmquew maximise, 1o the exient possible, iae yse ol -
chservable market data.

To the extent possible, markel information Is extracted from either the principal markst for
the assel (iz the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset) or, in
the shsence of such & markst, the most adva‘ztagems marxel available o the entity at
the &nd of the reporting perfod {is the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of
the assel, after taking into account ransaction costs and transport cosis),

| For non-financial assels, the fair valus measurement also lakes :inio ac:f::«*um a market
- pariicipant’s abil u‘y to use the asset in iis mw?»es? and best use or to seil it to ancther
- market paniicipant that would use the asset m its highest and & esz use

inveniories

inventories are maasured &t the lower of cost and net reaimaa%a vatus, The cost of
manufactured products includes direct maleriale, direst labowr and an appropriate
proportion of variatle and fixed overheads. Overherds are spplied on the bdi‘?% of m:xma% -
operating capacily. Costs are assigned on & firstin, firsk-out basis. :

Property, Plant and Equipment

Each class of propeny, vlant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value f@S’b where
applicable; any acoumulated cf%g%:ecamicn and Impairment josses.

Plant and sguipmant

Flant and equipment are measwred on the cost basis and therefore carriad at cost iess,

accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impatrment. in the avent that ihe car{ycng
amount of plant and equipment is grealer than the estimaled recoverable amount, the
carrying amount is written down mmzsesamiy 10 the estxmazac mr“miarab% amount and
impairment losses are recegnised either in profit or loss or @3 a revaluation. decrease if
the impairment losses relate 1o 2 revalued asset An ass ssmem of recoverable amount
is made when impabrmentindicators are present..

The carrying amount of plant and squipment s reviewed annually iw direclors lo ensure it
is notin excess of the recoverable amount from these assets, The recoverable amount is

agsessed on the basis of the expecied net sash flows thel will be recsived f{em he
ssel’s sinplovment and subseauent disposal. The expected net cash flows have besn

2
discounted to their present values In delermining recoverable amounts.




NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

*Leases of fixed assels, where substantiaily

Subseguent costs are included in the assels carrying amount o recognised as a
separate assel, as appropriate, only when i is probable thal fulure economic benefiis
associzted with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the flem can be -
measured refiably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as e*< nses gl e
profitor loss mmﬂg the ﬁnanc.‘g pericd in which they are %rz%*{eﬂ ~

fiepreciation

The depreciable amount of 8l fixed sssets, exc luding freshold land, is depreciated on &
straighi-fine basis over the assel's uselul life to the m“%g}aﬁ? commencing %mrrz the time
the asset is held ready for use. '

The éeprewaﬁ on rates used for each class of depreciable ssseéa are:

Ciase of Fived Asset U Drepreciation Rale L
Bu%iciéngs; B%. : ‘

Piant and squipmant 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

The assets residual values and usaful lives are ww;efs ik af%js,:st@f:i i a;}pmpr ata, ai
the end of each reporling period. :

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing ;:srr;:'ceéés wi*s%tvihe,r:"arr‘yingl :

amount These gains or losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, When

revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the reva,&gﬁsr* surplus relating fo that
asset are transferred to retalned samings. : :

Leases ,
i the risks and benefits ;m;;deﬁiai io the

&
ownership of the assel (but not the legal swnership) are transferred 1o the wmganf;; are
classified as finance leases, s '

Finenoe leasss are caplial lised by re ccrfmsmq an aﬁset and g liabi atg,r i the lower o? the

“amounts squal m {%*e fair valug of the feased ,ﬁ'«mpwi}r or the present value of the

minimuny lsase pavmants, including any gas rantesd residua! values. Lease payments ars
allocated: %}eiweﬁn ?i“%e reduction of 1 the lease labiiity and the lease inlterest edpense for
the period. o
Leased assels are deprecialed on 2 stralghi-ling basis over the shmer of iixé%f{ estimated
useful ives or the lease term. ; : S o e
Lesse payments for operating lea es where substantially 2 the risks and bensfits
remnaln with the kessor, ars recognise e,a;;easm on & shraightling basis over the %ease
e, ;

{ease incentives under operaling leases are recognised as & liability and amortised on @
siraight-line basis over the lease term,

Financial Instraments
initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets angd financial { fiabilities ars rec grised when the Cc’r;pa v becomes a
party fo the contractual provisions to the instrument, For financia! assets, t"ﬂs & the date
that the Compsny commils iiself to either the purchase or sale of the asset [ie frade date
accounting is adapted).

piug ransaclion costs, ¢ xcegt where t*zrn afzsmmem is ﬁ:ie sﬁed “at fazr val ue; %i‘zrouz:z%x

nrofit or foss”, in which case fransaction costs are expensed to profit or loss smmecstate?y L

VWnere availeble, guoted prices in an active market are used o deiermme fair vaiue, In
sther circumstances, valuation fechniques are adopied.




 NOTE 1! SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

rade receivables are initially measured at ihe transaction price i the trade receivables
f‘t{’} nat contain & significent financing compotent or if the practical wx&ecisen‘i WQE a;:x;:s lied
asspecified in IFRS 1583, .

Clagsification and s“i}sequeht measurement
Financiat llabilities
Financisl isbiities are 3&5&;&&{;{;&:&2&3{ measured aby
- amorfised cosl oy
- fair vaiue through profit orlos : Gt ,
A financial iability is measured at fair vahie through profit or loss If the ‘iaaﬁc%ai‘iéab?‘iy s
-3 cwmgem consideration of an acguirer in @ businass combination 1o whm IFRS
3 Business Combinations applies;
. = held for rading; of ,
~ initially designated as st falr vaiue through profit or loss.,

Al other finencial lgbllities are ’Stﬁ}‘:e‘C;i ently ﬂ"%m&i)l’éfﬁ at amortised cost usmg iha; .
stective interest mathod,

The effeciive interest method is a2 methad of cafculating the amortised ms‘ fzf & debt
instrument and of 2l z‘;@a{ i %xeresi expanss in profit or loss over the releveni period.

The effective interest rate is the %mamg rate of return of the financial assel or zam ity, that
T the rale that exactly discounts the estimated fulure cash flows e raugh i"‘ze
sxpacted lifs cr the msﬁmmmt to the net carrying amount ai ;mt;ai wmgmtfcn

% financiz! iability is held for fs'aé ng if itis:
- incuired for the purpose of repurchasing or repaying m‘ ihe near term;
< part of & portfolio where there is an actus! pattem of shortterm profit teking; or
< & derivative financial instrument {axcep* for g dervative thet is 5 fnancigl
gua{ame contract or a derivetive that is in an effective hedging relationship).
Any ﬁams or logses arising on changes o Talr value ars recognised in profit '<>r~ ;;ja:s o %sa o
extent that they are not part of & designated hedging relationship. : ;

The change in fair valie of the financial hability aftributable to changes in the rswer% '
credit risk is inken io oiher comprehensive income and is not subsequently reclassifi ad o
profit or loss. Instead, # is transferred fo retained eamings upon derecognition of the
fingncial Hability. :
if taking the {:hmge in credit r's& in.cther Cﬂmpﬂaha isive income enlarges or creates an
accounting mismatch, then thess gains or losses smtﬂd be taken to profit orloss rather
than other comprehensive income. Sy
Afinancial Hatdity cannot be reclassified.
Financial guaraniee conlbracls

A financial gusrantes contract is a contract that requires the issuer %z:: make s;zec:
payments o reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because @ spegified debtor Ia;i,
make payment when due in accordance with ﬁ'ze terms of adebt %r;stmmen‘

Financial guarantee contracts are inffially measured at faif value {csn d if not ﬁes;gnmed 4

gt fair value through profit orioss and do not arise from a fransfer of a financial aaﬂei} and

subsequently measured at the higher ol ,
~ the amount of loss aliowance delermined In sucordance o IFRS §,3.25.3; and

- the amount initally recognised lass gocumuiative amount of income 'eccg*:zse&
aocordance W:ti’z the revenue recognition g}aizcxes
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Financial assef
Financial assels are subssquently measured gt
- amoriised cost; k
~ fair value through oiher comprehensive income; of
- fair vatue through profit or ioss
on the basis of the fwo primary griteria; ;
- the comtractual cash flow charscleristics of the financis! assef and
- e business model for managing the financial assets.

A finzncial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost ¥ i meets the following
conditions: ‘

- the financial asset is managed solely to coliect contractual cash flows; and :

- the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are :
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount amslafzdmg oi’
specified dates, TSI

A financial assel is subsequently measured at fuir vaiue through olher mm;zféheﬁsive
ncome i i meels the following conditions: :

- the coniractual terms within fhe ?é nolal assel give rise to cash flows that are
smfeiy payments of pm*a;mt and i 1 on the principat amount cutstanding on
specified dates; and ~

- ihe business macié for managing the financial assel comprises both »:;anﬁmmmi o
cash flows collection and the salling of ibe fpencial dsset

Sy defaull, alf sther financial assels that do not meet the conditions of amortised cost and
the fair value through other comprehensive income's measurement condition are
‘subsequently measured at fair vajue through profit or loss.

The Cm‘rgam initially designates a financial instrument as measured at fair value through
profitorfoss i '

~ it eliminates or sgmﬁf;ars%v reduces & measurement or recognition if*cﬂﬂfsi stency

{often referred 0 as “accounting mismatch’} that would otherwise arse from

measuring assels or labililies or recognising the ga: 15 and losses on them on
gifferent bases; H R

- itis in accordance to the documented risk management or investment strategy and
information aboul the groupings was documented appropriately, so as the

performance of the financial liabiity thal was part of & group of financial liabilities or

financial asssly can be menaged and syalusted tonsislently on a fair valus basis;
and e )

- it s | hybrid conlract that contains an embedded derivative that significantly
modifies the cash flows otherwise reauired by the conlract

z%ve initial designation of the Bnanciah instruments o measure at fair value zhrsm:;r‘ ‘profit
or loss is 2 one-time option on initial classification and i3 #revecable until the Tinanciat -
asselis deresognised.

Equity instruments
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Al initial recognition, as long as the equily instrument is not held for trading or is not &
mnﬁr’;gen% consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
IFRS 3 applies, the Company made an irevorable sleclion to messure any subsaguent
changes in feir value of the sgully instruments in other comprahiensive income, whils the
dividend revenue received on underving equily instruments mvestments wz sff be
recognised in grofitorloss e
Regular way purchases and sales of fingncial assals are recognised and ﬁer@cogmsed ai:
zettiemant date in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy.

Derecognition

Derecegﬁms 1 refers o the removat of 2 ww'samiy rezr:;gr:ﬂsd ﬁﬁa{xcaa assetor ?inamraf

lability from the statemeant of financial position.

Dgrecognition of financial hiabilifies : ,
A fisbility & derecognised when it is exlinguished { {ie w*“zwz the obligation in the cﬁnfrxt s

discharged, cancelled or expires). An exchange of an existing financial liabi iiiv fora new

ong with substantially modified terms, or & substantial modification fo the'lerms of &

financial liability, is treated as an extinguishment of the existing liability and recognition of

@ new financial isbility.

. “The difference between the carrying amount of the financizl §sam ity derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any mn~<:asﬁ assels t*srs?eﬁed cr habz fties
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss. , o
Q@recagnztzan of rmaﬁcm! a5s5els
A *zhar‘c,a% asset js ﬁer“mgmse{i when the ho fﬁers confractual rights o its cash flows
expires, or the asset is fransferred in such & way that all the risks and rewards of

: Gwr}ez‘smg are substantially fransferrec
All the following criteria need fo he satisfied for the aisrr—mgmﬁaﬁ of a financial asset: :

- the right to receive cash fiows from the asset has' expired or been f{aﬂawrre{i

- all risk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been sut:&: antially tfansferreé ‘
Candg

- the Company no longer controls the asset (iz it has no practical ability ?0 makc
unitaters) declsions to sell the gsselio g third pariy).

On derecogrifion of 2 financial assel measured at ambrtised cost, the difference betweeﬂ '
the assel's carrying amount and the sum of the conszdara‘cmn recezved and rec‘nwabt@ :S;
recognised in profiterioss. ‘ , ‘

On derecognition of a8 debt instrument cisssified as fair value mmugb &ther“'
mmprehe%we income, the cumulative gain or loss previously acmmuiatad in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassifisd to profit or loss.

i derecognition of an investment ineguity which was elected o t';e ciassified under fir
vaiue through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accurnulzted in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but.
is transferred 1o retained eamings. v s
impairment i
The Company recognises a loss aliowance for expected cradit losses on: , ; :

- financial assets that are measured at amorlised cost of fair value through other

cormprehisn aw ineome; e
~ legse :mewaai :
- gontract assets fx-,g amount due from customers under cmstmf*t:an ﬂmﬁiracts’i
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~ loan commitments that are not measured at falr valus ihms}gb profit or loss; and

- fancial guarantes condr af*is that are notmeasured ab falr value through profitor
foss. ' o

Loss aliowance is nolrecognised for,
- financial assets measured st fair value through profit or loss: or
- eauily instruments measured ot fair velug through other camgarahansw& mwmﬁ

Expected credit losses are the probabilty-weighied estimate of cradit losses over the
sxpected fife of a financial instrument. A credit loss is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due and ali cash flows expacted o be rer‘ew»d al
discounted at the origina! effective interest rate of the financial instrument.

The Company uses the foliowing approsches 1o m;:za;rment &8 applicable amdwr ?FRS G
- the general approach;
- the simplifisd approach;
~ ihe purchased o originated credit impaired approach; and
- low credii risk operational simplification. :
General approgch :
‘Under the general appmacn at each 1 ;vs'tt g period, the C\;mgaﬂ*; ass%seé w e;ﬁezﬂ L
‘the fnancial instruments are credit ;mgs&sreﬁ and if; : S
- the credit risk of the finsncial instrument increased. S;meicnm y smcﬁ initial
recognition, the Company measmeci the oss allowance of the financial instruments
at an amount equat 1o the lifstime expeciwé cfad;i losses; and

- lhers was no significant increase in credit risk since initial fecognition, the

Company measured the joss ai*m:m»:m for zhai financia! instrument 2t t an amount -

gqual to 12-month expecied credit iosses. ~ o G
Simpiified approsch

The simplified approach does not require tracking of changss in g,red'{ fisk at avery

repoiting period, but instead rcfzu res the recognition of lifstime mxg}ef::%ed creditloss at all
times, .

This aporoach is applicable lo;

frade recelvables or mm&cx assats thet results from %raﬂs:;cusns ﬁzai az‘e within
the scope of WRS 15 Revenue from Contracts vfzi%x Customers, ihat mn‘iam a
significant financing component; and

- lesse receivables. ;
In measuring the expected credit loss, 2 provision rmatrix for trade receivables was used
taking into consideration various data to get to an axpected credit loss (ie cfrwrsrty of its
customer isase appropriate groupings of its historical loss experience, slcl,

Pyrchased or originated credit zm;;aarad approach

For a financial asset that is considered to be credit impaired (ot on acqui sﬁz(m m‘“?
originations}, the Company measured any change in ils lifelime expected credit loss as
the difference belween the assels gross camying amount and the present valus of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
mate Ay a:zasustmwm is recognised in profit or loss as an iﬂf}aﬂ‘m?ﬂi gain or loss,
Ewﬁﬁn{:w of gredil i ;mpa irmentinciudes:

- significant financial difficulty of the issusr or Bormweh

- abreach of contract {eg detault or past dus event);
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- where & lender has granted {o the bomower a u:znw%sm dug to the barmwef‘
financial difficuity, that the lender wouid not otherwise sonsider:

- it is probable ths borrower w:xi enter bank §mptcy or other financial r*mgam‘:aizcn
and

- the disappearance of an aclive market ’fa, the fmamzai asset mcaube f;:sf ﬁnancza%; s

difficulties.
Low credif risk operationg! efmpfzf cation approach

i a financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the initial mp@ﬂmg ﬁah« the
Company assumed thal the coredil sk has nol increased significantly since &rzsn;;i
recognition ‘and, sccordingly, can rom‘mue o recognise a iasss alfowance of ”52~‘m0m%;
sxneciad credif loss,

i order 1o make such determination that the rmn dal asset has low credit risk, the
Lompany spg ied its internal credit risk ratings or other mamoda ogzes uamg a g lobal fy»
comparabie cieﬁ;‘sstmn of low credit risk,
A financial assei is considered to have fow credit risk if

- there'is a low risk of dafault by the horrower,

« the borrower has s*msq capac éy o meet iis contractual (::sh'ﬁ;:aw chiigations in the
‘near ferm; and

- adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term ‘may, but
not necessarily, reduce tha ab,t%ty ofthe b&rmwar o ﬁﬁm is c:ontr" tal c:ash ﬂaw‘;”

obligatons.

A financial asset is not Qi}ﬂ’zﬁ?’@j o ooy fow z,feciit fisk merely due o axistence Qf
colfateral, or because g borrower has a lower visk of defaull 1&8?} ihe risk inherentin the
financial assels, or jower than the credit risk of the jurisdiction in which it opetates
Fecognition of expected credit losses in financial ste fermenis g i
At each repotting date, the Company recognised the moxfewem in the loss a %‘swamc as
an impairment gam or loss m ihe at&%emém of pmﬁt or loss ang other oo mprehaagws
meome,

The carrying amount of financial assets measured at amgr‘“;seci cost includes the loss

aliowance reisting to that dﬁﬁt’-}{

?s, sis measured at fair value through other mmpranms;w income are res;agmsed at faxr
vaiug with changes in fair value racognised in other comprehensive incoms, The amsunt o

in relation to change In credit risk is transferred from other “‘Q'ﬁpf&?‘;@ﬂsw@ mwme ta.;*"

profitor loss at every reparima pericd.

For financial assefs that are unrecognised {sg loan u@mm;iﬁeﬁts yet fo be grawn,
financial guarantees), @ provision for loss sliowance is i“i’*’-‘%‘ﬁi%:{f i iﬂc, &faiém&nt of
financial ;:u:}s;tseﬁ to recoanise the 10ss allowance.

& bnpeirment of Assets




NOTE 10 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCOUNTING PCLICIES

At the end of sach repomng period, the Cormpany assesses whether there. s any'
indicalion that an assel may be impeaired. The assessment will include conﬂa::iermg
external sources of information and intemal sources of information, including dividends
recelved from subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures deemed to be out of pre-
acquisition profits. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the
asset by comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, baing the higher of the asset's
fair value less cosis of disposal and vaiue In use, 1o the assel’s camfing amount. Any
axcess of the assel's cairying amount over aa recoverable amount is recognised
immediately i pmﬂ* of loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in
accordance with another Standard {eg in acwrﬁeﬁce with the eva fuation made% iniAs o
116: Property, Plant and Equipment). Any impairment foss of 2 rcvaiuea asset i ss freated
as a revaluation decrease in accordance with that cther Standard.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an if’dl\i'ﬁiiaf assst, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1o which the
asset belongs. ‘

impairment 1&3&@ is performed annually for goodwill inlangible assels thﬁ mdeﬁmte' ‘
fives and infangible assels notyet available for use.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrving amount of the asesi {{}{
- cash-genersting unit} is incressed fo the revised estimate of iis recoverable amount, but
~50 that the increased canying amount doss not exceed the carrying amount that would
~have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset {or cash-
gaaem‘m unity in prior years. A reversal of an’ ;mpazmeni ioss s rex,{:sgmsed irmmedistely
in profit or loss, unless the relevant assat is sarried at a revalued amount, in u,eiszuh aase o
the reversal of the impairmment loss s ircafeci a5 a raxfaiuaam mnereass,. '

B Emedoyes Bensfiis
Shortterm smployee benefils

- Provision is-made for thercompany's ohiigation for aﬁam%erm employse "*er;er*zs Short-
erm employee benefits are benefits {other than termination benefit s} that are expected to
be settled wholly before 12 months afier the end of the annusl reporting pericd i which
the employess render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Shor-
term emploves benefits are measured ?.‘1’ the {unﬁlsmmt&é; amounts e}cpecizﬁ m be pa;s:*ﬁ
when the obligation is settfed.

§4 rm company's obligations for shorbterm employes beneﬁts such as wages, saianes and
sick leave are recognised as part of current frade and other payables in the statement of
financial pesition. s :

Other long-tenm employes benefits

Provision is mede for employees’ long service leave and amma% lsave efﬁizdamems r&o‘ .
expected 1o be setied wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual femr‘mg: ‘
period in which the employess render e related service. Clher mg—wrm amploves
i:serxeﬁts are measured at the present value of the. ezpectezi fuiar& payments to be made

o employess. Expecled f.n:we paymenis incorporate anticipated future wage and salary
levels, durations of service and employee deparfures and are discounted at rates
determined by reference fo market yields st the end of the reporting period on
governmant bonds that have maturity dates thet approximate the terms of the obl ligations.: -
Upon the remeasurement of obligations for olher bng Aarm amployes ﬁéﬂ&‘kﬁ fhe nei' =
change in the obligation s recognissd in profit or ioss 8s part of empfsyea benefis
SEDENSE.
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)

The company's obligations for long-term employvee benefils are presented as non-current
provisions in its statement of financial position, except where the company does not have
an uncondiionzl dght fo defer ssfilement for at lsast 12 months afler the end of the
reporting paried, in which casge the obt 4@3*:{}% are presented as current pro wisions.

Provisions

Provisions ars recognised when the company has a legal or constructive obiigation, as a
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outfiow of economic benefits will
result and that ocutflow can be relisbly measured. Provisions are measured at the best
sstimate of the amounts required to sefile the obligation &t the end of the sapcrt*ﬁg
period.

Cashand Cash Equlvalenis

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on bat"" deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly fiquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafls are shown within borrowings in-current mbﬁmas onthe

statement of financial position.

Revenie Recognition

The Company has applied IFES 15 using he z:ume.iia{vg effective method. Therefore, the
comparative information has not been restated and continues {o be presented under 1AS

A and IAS Y1 The r:iatans of accounting poiicies under IAS 18 and IAS 11 are discl osed

separately since they differ from those 1 ad&r IFRS *§3 The impact of cﬁangea s
immaterial,

Inthe mmz}amiwg pericd

~ "{&Veﬂiﬂ was measured gt the fair value of ’me consideration received or ?‘SCEWE’Q ieafter

faking into zocount any frade discounts and volume rebates allowed. When ihe inflow of
caﬂaiéemtian was deferred; it was trealed as the provision of financing and was
discounted gt 2 vate of inlerest thet & ge&gmi y accepted in the market for simitar
:i:rangemer%s The difference between the am@um inttiad ‘_y {&vagms«é and iifa amaua; o
ultimately received was interest ravenue. : e o

Fevenus from sale of goods was fecf:;m se-:i at the point of ﬁe ivery as this mrfesmnds
to the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods and the cessation of
all involvement in those goods,

Revenus from sale of goods was recognised at the point i}f defivery as this ﬁorremponds

o e transier of significant risks and rewards of awners*zzp ot geods and the z:essa: ool
alf involvementin those goods. - :

Trads and Other %%e«:e&vabie&

Trade and other receivables inciude amounts dus from customers for goods sold and
services performed in the ordinary cowse of business. Reneivables expected o be
soliecied within 12 monihs of the end of the reporting period af&a‘iassiﬁed as current
assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current sesets,

Trade and oiher rocelvables sre inllially recognised st fair vame and :;uhsmquz:n{}y o

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for

wmpaiment. Refer lo Note 1{g) for further discussion on {ha determination of zmpa;meni*"
108588,

Trade and Other Payables ,

Trade and other ﬁ*&yaﬁes represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the
entity that remain unpald at the end of the reporting period, The balance is recognised as
a current Hzbility with the amounis normally pmd within, 30 days of recognition of the
fiability. o e f
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RiN

a.

Borrowing Cosis

Borrowing costs direclly aliribuleble o the acguisition, construction or pm{imhm of
assets that necessarly take 2 substantial pered of time to prepare for their intended use
or sale are added fo the cost of those sssets, until such time as the assais are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale, :

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are

incirred,
{’:@mpartﬁ«a ?;gm"es

When requited by Accounting Standards, comparalive figures have been adiusted o

conform o changes in presentation for the current financial year,
Foregign Cw’%my Transactions and Balances
Functional and presentation CUrancy

The functionat currency is measured usmg the mrrefzcy of &e pr‘”targ eccr‘amrc '

environment in which the company operates. The financial siatements are presented in
US doliars, which is the entity’s funclional and presentation currency.

Transaf:;izzms amﬁ baiances ~

Foreign currency fransactions are transiated info ‘*zm&:es*ai ﬁ{:‘rreng‘:y using the sxchange.
fates pr evax&;pg at the date ofihe fansaction, Fcrmsgn currency msra‘a"y ‘i*éms”aré :
historical
post continug o be ‘carrded st the exchangs rate at the date of the iransactmﬁ Non-

transiated at the yearand &xchaﬁge rate. Non-monetary items measured at

monetary ftems measured ai falr value are reported at the exchange rate at the date

whern faln values wmr% detemma»d
Exchange cisi?eremeg arising on the fransiation of m&netary zzmm& sre {ecagn ised in mof t

or loss, except wheru deferred in eauity as a gaaiff‘;mg cash ﬁc}w of net investment
fedge,

Exuhas*ge differences arising on the tzarza*aam of f;mﬂmmaiary ttems e ;cscmnsﬁd -
or %oss gl
directly recognised in ofher mmm{chnnswg ncome, a%ham&a& ihe exchanae s::‘zﬁerarct: s

directly in other comgr@henswa income {0 the extent that the undeﬂymg gain

scogrised in proft orloss,
Sritical %mmm‘img Estimates and &i:figemwmv

The directors  evaluate sstimates and msigemanﬁs ;nuupcfateci mit} the f nancial
statements based on historicai knowled ge-and best avellable ocurrent information.

Estimates assume a reasonable expectaiion of future events and are based cwrufrerzi* f

trends and economic data, ccsfamed both extern zmy aﬁd withiny the company.
ey astimates
i Impairment — general

The company assesses ;mpdz;‘mﬁﬁi al the end of each repmmg period by
evaluating the conditions and evenis specific fo the company that may be

indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverabie amounis of ralevant asz;rsis ara
“reassessed using  value-in-use u&ii&ma?‘@ﬂu which incorporate vamm zfeyf e

assumptions.

‘Mew and Amendad Accounting Pcismés %&ags:eﬁ by ihe Camgaﬂy

The Company has adopled all of the new or amended Accot untting Standards and
interpretations issued by the international Accounting Standarde E’aam‘ "%%35*} that are
mandatory forthe current f‘efxomvg period,

z?mg new, revised or amended Accounting Standards or ntyrprer;s@ms that are mz yet

ma'zfiazary fave not been early ndopted.
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FRS 8 Financial Instruments

The Company has adopled IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 on a modified retrospective.
basis. The standard introduced new classification and measurement models for financial
assets, A financial asset shall be measured at amortisad cost i it is held within 2 business
model whose objective is to hold assels in order to colleet contraciual cash Tiows which
arise on spacified dates and that are solely principat and interest, A debt investment shall
be measurad st fair value through other comprehensive income K it is he%@ within &
business model whose objective is to both hold assels in ordsr to collect conlractual cash
fliows which arise on specified dates that sre solely principal and interest as well &5 selling
the assel on the basis of its foir value. All offier financial assels are classified and
measured at falr value through profit or loss unless the entity makes an irrevocable
slaction on initial recognition to present gaing and losses on eguity insiruments gihat arg
not held-for-trading or contingent consideration recognised in'a business combination) in
other comprehensive income {OCH). Despite these requirements, a financial asset may
be irrevocably designated as messured a2t fair valus through profit or loss To reducs the
effect of, or eliminale, an accounting mismatch. For fi nancial ligbilies designated at fair
value through profit or loss, the standard requires the portion of the change in fair value
ihat refates to the enlity's own credit risk to be presented in ot {unless it waald create
an accounting mismatch). New simpier hedge accounting requir sments are.
more c*cwi’;s align the ocounting treatment with the risk Waﬂagemcm acvwzes of the
‘entity. Mew impairment requirements use an expecte@ credit ioss' {'ECLY model fo
recognise an aliowance. impairment is measured Using a 12-month ECL mathod unless
e credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition
in which case the [felime ECL mathod is adopted. For receivables, & simglified approacn
to measuring expecied creditjosses using & §“§aime ax;zeateé ioss & Iawam»« is ava; lable.

IFRS 15 Reveaue from Cc:znffacfg with Cus sfomers

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 from 4 Jenmw Afﬂ'i onz modified r&imspec%sw”
approach. The standard @ro\f'czes single son prenensxe madst for revenue recognition.
The core p:'mmﬁ of the S{&’%iﬁ::?d is that an entttg shall recognise revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reflacts the
consideration o which the eniity expects o be entitled in gxchangs for those goods or
services. The standard introduced a new rm‘irs:#aﬁsmd revenue recognition model m{h;
& measurement approach that s based on an afiocation *5?? the transaction ;3?1”“5 Thisis
described further in the accounting policies below. Credit risk is pmsnﬁieu Qeﬁafemm a&;‘
an expense mather than adiusted against revenue. Contracts with cusfomers are
presented in an entity's statement of financial posilion as a deferred maintenance
revenue, work in progress, or a receivable, denem ing on the relationship between the
entity's performance and the customer's payment. Cus stomer ‘acquisition costs and costs
fo fulfll 2 conbact can, suﬁgact o cerlain criteria, be s:.ap; beé as-an asset Qmi amsm%d
over the contract period,

"%‘hﬁ aciopmn of these Acmurximg Standards and mier;}feianom gid not ﬁave aﬁy},}*
ignificant impact on. the financial performance or position of the Company danm thes
financial year ended 31 December 2018, :

£ New Accounting Standards for Apfsis‘“a*mﬂ in ?aiﬁfe Pamﬁs

The 1ASB has issusd a number of new and amended Amouni‘ng Standards and
interpretations hat have mandsiory application dates for future reporting pericds, some
of which are relevant to the Company. The direciors have decided notto. sarly as:k::pt any
of ihe new and amended pronouncements. Thelr asseﬁssmen{ of the pronouncements mai;
are relevant to the Company but applicable in fulure reporting pericds is setoul beiow

e IFRS 16 Leases {applicable to annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1
January 2019,

tended to



NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

When effective, this Standard will replace the current accounting requirements
applicable 10 leases in JAS 117, Leases and related Interprefations. IFRS 16
introduces -a single lesses ascounﬁng mmﬁaf that efiminates the f@quemmeni i:}r
lemsesiobe f;*assmad as operating or finance leases.

The main changes introduced by the new Standard are as follows:

recognition of a right-ot-use asset and habilty for ail leases (exciuding s?‘s{:}{*-ft@rm g
legses with less than 12 months of tenure and leases refating to low-value assets);
depreciation of right-ofuse assels in lne with 148 161 Property, Plant and

Eduipment in ;}f@ﬁi of loss and unwinding of the fab;.uy in ;:srmm:% and iderest
components;

inclusion of variabie lease ;}aymemq that depend on anindex or a rate | inthe rnszsas ‘
megsurament-of the lease linbility usmg %?ze index or rate at the mmmer*a:enmmﬁ
data; :
application of & p&:ctm expedient to psrmit a lesses to slect not to separste non-
lzase componants and instead accourd for sl components a8 a lease, and '
inclusion of additional disclosure requirernents.

The fransitions! provisions of IFRS 16 aliow z lessse to either "ezfmpabime y apply
- the Standard to comparatives in line Wlih B & or rmgrz*se the cumulative sffect

of retrogpective app lication as an adjustment to spenwg aquity’ on the daie of i ini tia o

8}:}?{““”3:&?‘

Basad on a g?e Hminary assessment performed ovar sach line of biscmess an d
product type, the effect of IFRS 1645 ot wxgéc:m:f fo have 5 material effect on the
Campmy ftis m‘vprac%scam& at this stage o ;::mvsc:fa a reamnab & esizmaﬁ: of sud :
impact,




NOTE 2. PROFIT / {LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

: Expenses
Dzpreciation of properly, plant and equipment
‘Emploves benefits sxpense.
4. Revenue and Other Income
Saie of goods
Processing e incomea

- NOTE 3 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

income fax expanse

| NOTE 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

- Cash at bank
NOTE 5 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
CURRENT

Trade receivables
Dther receivables

NOTE 6 INVENTORIES

- CURRERNT
Raw matenals and siores atcost
Finishied goods ol cost

2018 2017
& $
80,216 48246
43480 45008
103898 83344
4760828 981630
- 236,184
4760.828 1,217,814
2618 2017
. &
100,822 1,820
$ g E
23,718 0934
2018 2017
& %
7,636 3,440
7.636 47.362
2018 2017
g %
301,625 36487
219,188 49798
520,713




CHOTE 7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

‘Land and Buildings
Freehold land st

§~ + Landatcost

Totel land

Buiidings at
g Buiidings at'cost

'~  Buildings sccumulated depreciation

- Total buiidings
Total land and buildings

Plant and Eguipment
fant gnd equipment at cost

© Accumuisted depregistion

Total plant and equipment

Hoter Vehicles

B

" Motor vehicles at cost

s
Accumulated depreciation
£y

- Totat motor vehicles

e

Total property, p%ani and equipment

I NOTE 8: TAX

Liabiiities

CURRENT

Incoms a8

2018 2017
$ $
43851 45,025
43851 45025
533371 839043
{80,005}  (53.904)
453366 485,139
497,217 530,164
80276 85805
{41,996} (27.727)
38,280 58,078
83578 48199
(20486) (3835
83092 44344
. 5UBSES 632565
s 2017
3 $
189,476 98,400




NOTE 9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

CURRENT
‘Sundry payables and accrued expenses

>

INOTE 10: BORROWINGS

g

Hote
CCURRENT
Borrowings from PT lovestasi Mandin interzircon
Lease lability 13

- Totat current borowings

MON-CURRENT
L=ase liability
Total non-current borrowings

Tolal borrowings

The smounis owing o PT Investasi Mandini Inferziccon relstes

executed on 31 December 2015. As per the agreement, PT investast Mandiri ir
; ,Jm ides a credil faciity (credit limit of US$15,000,000 over a 12-month g;ensci} on th

2018 2047

- $ 3

132,447 81,875
2048 2017
5 %

- 281,886
27,487 15033
27487 208,719
20303 20541
20303 20541
47,780 317,260

iooa credit line agreemesnt

mierzircon
asis.that

t is entitied o PT investasi Mandiri's client accounts receivable: Easad on ?hxs; n@“@cméni T
mvss%:ass anr}-m m?ﬁmwn assumas 100% of the credit risk and has noorecourse o PT
Investasi Mandir once the right o the scoount receivable has been tmns?er&:ci P investasi
© Mandi interzircon charges 2 0.65% factoring commission and 5% pa interest rate. paid

moniily ca%cufdte{é on the a;erdga monthly balance drawn down.

© The lzase liability relates to finance leases on four motor xke&it;%eﬁ, Three of the leases -

Cenlered info on 2 August 2018, 11 September 2047 and 18 Jaauafy 2018, vach of which for a 4

lease termoof 36 -months and an shachsd inferest rate of 21.02% m, 16.90% and 19.26%

%pﬁcifve y. The fourth lease was entared into on § May 2017 for a lease term of 48 months

-and an attached interest rate of 8.66%.

NOTE 11 IBSUED CAPITAL

10,000 {2017 10,000} fully psid ordinary shares

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds
on winding up of the mmpanv in ;}rﬂmmsn ta the number of
shareg held.

Al the shareholderg' m 1eetings ; sas‘x ordinary share is entitle d
o one vole when & poltis called; othenwise sach ’
shareholder has ong vote on a show of hands.

2018

7

72450

72,490




- NOTE 12: RESERVES

2018 2017
$ s
Foreign exchange reserve ; {3434y
 Capitat reserve ~ 526,386

520654 323610

The capital conlribution reserve was created durng the financial year following the execution
of z deed of release whereby the sharehoiders of the company aaraad to unconditionally and
irrevocably release the company from its obli igation to repay the sum of USD%272, '?"4 sw the
mn‘e*ﬁ sum Guzsza%mg uf}des the sharehoider loans. - &

The capilal contribulion reseive s déaff%buiamé in future periods, subject to the pm\zﬁs}msm‘
the local reporting hirisdictions. :

HOTE 13 CAPITAL AN D LEASING COMMITMENTS o
Note - ZB 3337 o

a  Finance Lease and Hire Purchase Commitments
Payable — minimum lease payments: ‘ o
—~ notlater than 12 months e ‘ ‘ 27,487 15,033
e between 12 months and five yaears : 20303 20841
 Present value of minimum lease payments e R 47,790 38574
b, Operating Lease Commitments ‘ S
: ?\éan»amcmfaf bie operating jzases contracted for but
,not recognised inthe maaczai statements:
P3 ayabls - msmmam lease 5;#8}*&’1"@5‘&:
e nist faie;z%zaﬁ 12 months W26 . 1545
| 1726 1845

ROTE 14 CONTIRGENT LIABILITIES

The company has no msiét‘sgeﬂt Hablities Tor the vear ended 31 December 2018 {:26'2‘?: Ml




NOTE 15: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2018 L 2BT
$ s

~Recongiliation of Cash Flows from Operating ﬁzﬁsvm% S

with Profit ! {Las*.;; after income Tax ‘ ; -

Profit/ loss] after income tax . o 302,768 38972y

Nor-cash flows in profit SHER
C— Depreciation , 80,216 487246
—  foreign exchange 6,371y . (552)

Changes in assets and liabilities | | | E
- decrease / (increase) in rade and ofher receivables ' 39728 ¢ {93’80}
. incraase in inveniories , : {434.418) {E@QQS}

- increase / {decreasey in rade and other pa fdb?&:: , , 50,722 {’128,425}

- increase / { amiﬁék@ incurrent fax flability ; 23033 (4221

38724 (195532)

| NOTE 15: SUBSEQUENT. EVENT:-:«

s

Effective 24 Jasua'y 2018, the company entered into an sxclusive operation and
management agresment with PT Andary Usaha Makmur (2 limited i Hability company in a legal
form of PMA incorporated under the laws of indonesia). As per the terms of the agreement,
the company has engaged PT Andary Usaha Makmur as the exclusive operation «xﬂdf,

management services providar in dolng so, the **x*sisng shareholders of tha company C
pledged their shares to PT Andary Usaha Makmur effective 24 January 2019, PT Andary

xjgai'sa Miakmur commits to invest in ihe company up to USDS13, 400,000 over a period of 15
years ffor the purpose “of mining equipment, other capital expenditure, exploration and
geology studies, operational and administrative best praciices and management and other
consulling services). in return for such services the company is {eﬂ;wmd tc; pay & servi se fee
to BT Andary Usaha Makmur gqual o 96% of #s net gmﬁ* ;:;ef mnurr th mugi‘:ng the
operation ard management genau ~ : s

CNOTE A7 COMPANY ﬁETh c.S

" Thaen 32’-*«red office of the company is:

I Taurus  No, 243 Menteng Jekan
Ra‘ya Palangka Raya Kalimantan
Tengzh Indonesia

 The principal place of business i ‘

dalan Fery %}en};ah@raﬂgaa Degs Tumbang Empes %{eca mantan
#ihing Raya %’iahag}a’éeﬁ Gunung Mas Kalimarian
Tengah indongsia ‘




Y
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- i accordance with a resolution of e dirsctors of PT Investasi Mandia, the Direclors of the

company declars that

1. The financial stalements and notes, as set out on pages 3 fo 24, are’
& in comnpliance wilh Infernational Financial Reporling Standards; and ,
) give 2 frue and fair view of the company's financial position as at 31 December

2018 and of its performance for the year endad on that date,

2 in the directors’ opinion thers gr¢ reasonable grodnds o believe that the company will be

abie 1o pay its debis as and when they become dus and paysble.

Direcior

Bahing Diinat ;
Dated this 23 day of Aprif : [peisste




HALL CHADWICK &' (NSW)

PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO

THE MEMBERS OF PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI SYDNEY
Level 40
i i 2 Pk Sireet
Report on the Financial Report sz:@} n&sv&; 2500
Qualified Opinion Austeatic
Ph: (612)

We have audited the accompanying financial report of PT. Investasi Mandari (“the r« (£12) 924>
Company”) which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes

in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and the

directors’ declaration.

in our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of our report:

a. the accompanying financial report of PT. Investasi Mandiri is giving a true and fair
view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2018 and of its financial
performance for the year then ended; and

b. the financial report complies with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Inventories

We were appointed as auditors of the Company on 26 February 2019 and thus did not
observe the counting of the physical inventories as at 31 December 2018. We were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence by alternative means in relation to the
inventory balances as at 31 December 2018. Our audit opinion on the financial report for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was modified accordingly.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those
standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the auditor independence requirements of the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We
have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the ——————
information included in the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018  Aiemsar of FrimeGiosal
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the = *<;am e ieperser
information included in the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018
but does not include the financial report and our auditor's report thereon. Qur opinion on
the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial
report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

e -
ZZ PrimeGlobal

SYDNEY - PENRITH - MELBOURNE - BRISBANE - PERTH - DARWIN
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
www.hallchadwick.com.au



HALL CHADWICK &' (NSW)

PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial report, the directors
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the
financial report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.



HALL CHADWICK &' (NSW)

PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

St (Lot 4

HALL CHADWICK
Level 40, 2 Park Street
Sydney NSW 2000

DREW TOWNSEND
Partner
Dated: 23 April 2019
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PT. investasi Mandiri

Financial Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2017
DIRECTORS' REPORT
Your directors present their report on the company for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

Directors

The names of the directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are:
Bahing Dijimat
Wira Putra

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless
otherwise stated.

Review of Operations

The loss of the company for the financial year after providing for income tax amounted to USD$19,172
{2016: Loss of USD$20,359).

A review of the operations of the company during the financial year and the results of those operations
shows that in 2017 the company continued to operate as a processing agent for external third-party
suppliers of raw material. However later in the 2017 financial year the company started to mine heavy
mineral concentrate from its own deposit and processed this into premium Zircon (grade 65.5),
resulting in an increase in total revenue from USD3$241,461 to USD$1,217 814.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs
No significant changes in the company's state of affairs occurred during the financial year.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the company during the financial year was being the holder of a mining
concession related to a mineral sands deposit located in the Central Kalimantan Province of indonesia,
with an area of 2,032 hectares. in conjunction with this, the Company operated a processing plant
equipped to produce premium Zircon (65.5 grade).

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year.

Events Subsequent to the End of the Reporting Period

Apart from the matter disclosed in note 16 of the financial statemenis, no other matters or
circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may

significantly affect the cperations of the company, the resuits of those operations, or the state of affairs
of the company in future financial years.

Likely Developments and Expected Results of Operations

Likely developments in the operations of the company and the expected resulls of those operations in
future financial years have not been included in this report as the inclusion of such information is fikely
to result in unreasonable prejudice to the company.

Environmental Regulation

The company's operations are not reguiated by any significant environmental regulation under a law of
the Commonweaith or of a state or territory.

Page 1 of 24
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PT. Investasi Mandiri
DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dividends
Ne dividends were paid or declared during the financial year.

Options

No options over issued shares or interests in the company were granted during or since the end of the
financial year and there were no options cuistanding at the date of this report.

No shares were issued during or since the end of the year as a resuit of the exercise of an option over
unissued shares or interests.

Indemnification of Officers

No indempities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the financial
year, for any person who is or has been an officer or auditor of the company.

Proceedings on Behalf of the Company

No person has applied for leave of court to bring proceedings on behalf of the company or intervene in
any proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of
the company for all or any part of those proceedings.

The company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.
This directors’ report is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

\ Bahing Djimat
Dated this 230 day of April 2019
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PT. Investasi Mandiri

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

Revenue 1,217,814 241,461
Cost of sales (756,157)  (91,724)
Gross profit ﬁ:sq_ésf_;a?ﬁ};
Other revenue 30,568 -
Depreciation and amortisation (48,248)  (37.895)
Finance cosis (11,858) (7,121}
Consulting and professional expenses (147 877)  (43901)
Repairs and maintenance expenses (57.543) ~ (8,514)
Freight and cartage expenses (113,512}  (14,580)
Administration expenses {43,243) (2,040)
Commissions paid {3.113) -
Employee benefits expense (45,098) (29,562)
Compliance costs {11,.022) (16,511)
Other expenses ) {28,066) {9,579)
Profit / (loss) before income {ax 2 (17,352)  {20,966)
Income tax benefit / (expense) 3 {1,820) 607
Profit / {loss) for the year (19,172}  (20,359)
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax - -
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - -
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year {19,172y  (20,359)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Page 3.of 24
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PT. Investasi Mandiri

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
inventories

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Current tax liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

issued capital
Reserves
Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY

Note

o

10

10

1
12

2017
$

9,934
47,362
86,295

2016

4634
37,582

143,591

42216

632,586

5094 592

632,585

584 592

776,177

636,808

81,675
296,719
98,408

210,096
225,502
50,802

476,803

486,400

20,541

20,541

497,344

486,400

278,833

150,408

72,490
323,810
(117.267)

72,450
178,013
(98,095}

278,833

150,408

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Page 4 of 24
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PT. Investasi Mandiri

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
Issued 5
Foreign X
Capital Retained Capital
Note  Ordinary Eamings CXCNange pocorve 1ol

Shares) Reserve
$ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 January . )
2018 72,450 {77,736} {5,248}
Issue of ordinary B . N .
shares
Profit/ (loss) for the . R .
year {20,359) ‘ {20,359)
Additions to reserve 12 - - 1,937 174,076 176,013
Balance at 31
D ber 2016 72,490 {98,085} 1,937 174,076 150,408
o AT 72,490  (98,095) 1937 174076 150,408
Issue of ordinary . . i . .
shares
Profit / {loss) for the .
year - (19,172} - {19,172)
Additions to reserve 12 - - {615) 148,212 147,597
Balance at 31
December 2017 72,480 {117,267) 1,322 322,288 278,833

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Page 5of 24
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PT. Investasi Mandiri

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 1,238,603 241,481
Payments to suppliers and employees {1,409,877) {31,208)
Interest paid (8,902) {7,097)
Finance costs paid (1,958) -
income tax paid (12,400} (12,629)
Net cash provided by operating activities 15 (195,532} 189,757
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment (48,569)  (179,150)
Net cash used in investing aclivities (48,569) {179,150)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from / (repayments of} borrowings 251,561 {6,162)
Repayments of finance lease (2.097) .
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 249,464 (6,162)
Net increase in cash held 5,363 4445
Cash at beginning of financial year 4634 72
Effect of movement in exchange rates on cash held (63} 117
Cash at end of financiail year 4 9934 4,634

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Page 6 of 24
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PT. Investasi Mandiri

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PT Investasi Mandin is 2 company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in indonesia.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 23 Aprit 2018 by the directors of the
company.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost
convention except as modified by the revaiuation of financial assets and financial fiabilities at
fair value through profit or loss and are in accordance with international Financial Reporting
Standards (*IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and
IFRIC interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assels and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporling period. Aithough these estimates ae based on management's best knowledge of the
amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

The financial statements are presented in United State Dollars {"USD").

Accounting Policies
a. income Tax

The income tax expense (income) for the year comprises current income tax expense
{income) and deferred tax expense {income).

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to a business combination or are recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income. Current tax liabilities (assets) are therefore measured at the
amounts expected fo be paid to (recovered from) the relevant taxation authority using tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred income tax expense refliects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax
fiability balances during the year as well as unused tax losses.

Cuwirent and deferred income tax expense (income) is charged or credited directly to
equity instead of profit or loss when the tax relates to items that are credited or charged
directly to equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is seffied and their
measurement aiso refiects the manner in which management expects to recover or settie
the carrying amount of the related asset or fiability.

With respect to land and buildings measured at fair value, the related deferred tax liability
or deferred tax asset is measured on the basis that the carrying amount of the asset will
be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets reiating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the benefits of the deferred tax asset can be utilised.

Where temporary differences exist in relation fo investments in subsidiaries, branches,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlied and it is not
probable that the reversal will occur in the foreseeable future.



RSSO

Olnal

Forpers

PT. Investasi Mandiri

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

)

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off
exists and it is intended that net settlement or simuitaneous realisation and settiement of
the respective asset and liability will occur. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
where: (i) a legally enforceable right of set-off exists; and (ji} the deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities, where it is intended that net settlement or
simultaneous realisation and settiement of the respective asset and liability will occur in
future periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax assefs or liabilites are
expected to be recovered or settled,

Fair Value of Assels

The company measures some of its assets at fair value. Fair value is the price the
company would receive to seil an asset in an orderly (ie unforced) transaction between
independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent chservable market
pricing information is used to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be
made having regard to the characteristics of the specific asset. The fair values of assets
that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more vaiuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of
observable market data.

To the extent possibie, market information is extracted from either the principal market for
the asset (ie the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset) or, in
the absence of such a market, the most advantageous market available to the entity at
the end of the reporting period (ie the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of
the asset, after taking into account transaction costs and transport cosis).

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement aiso takes into account a market
participant's ability to use the asset in #ts highest and best use or to sell it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
manufactured products includes direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate

proportion of variable and fixed overheads. Overheads are applied on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Costs are assigned on a first-in, first-out basis.

Property, Piant and Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair vaiue less, where
applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Plant and equipment

Piant and equipment are measured on the cost basis.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it
is not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is
assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the

asset's employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash fiows have been
discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, excluding freehoid land, is depreciated on &
straight-line basis over the asset's useful life to the company commencing from the time
the assel is held ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate

Page 8 of 24
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Buildings 5%
Plant and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting pefiod.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately io its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carying
amount. These gains or losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, amounis included in the revaluation surplus relating to that
asset are transferred to retained earnings.

Leases

Leases of fixed assets, where substantially all the risks and benefils incidental to the
ownership of the asset (but not the legal ownership) are transferred to the company, are
classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised by recognising an asset and a liability at the lower of the
amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the
minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are
allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for
the period.

Leased assels are depreciated on a siraight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated
useful lives or the lease term.

Lease payments for operating teases, where substantially all the risks and benefits
remain with the lessor, are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis aver the lease
term.

Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to
the date that the company commits itself to either purchase or sell the asset (ie trade date
accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except
where the instrument is classified “at fair value through profit or loss”, in which case
transaction costs are recognised as expenses in profit or loss immediately.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the
effective interest method, or cost. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are
used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

Amortised cost is calculated as the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability
is measured at initial recognition less principal repayments and any reduction for
impairment, and adjusted for any cumulative amortisation of the difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method.

Page 3 of 24
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The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipis (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life (or when this cannot be relfiably predicted, the
contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected future net cash flows will necessitate an
adjustment to the carrying amount with a2 consequential recognition of an income or
expense item in profit or loss.

The company does not designate any interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint
veniures as being subject to the requirements of Accounting Standards specifically
applicable to financial instruments.

{i) Financial assets at fair value throdgh profit or loss

Financial assets are classified at “fair value through profit or loss” when they are
held for trading for the purpose of short-term profit taking, derivatives not held for
hedging purposes, or when they are designated as such to avoid an accounting
mismatch or to enable performance evaluation where a group of financial assets is
managed by key management personnel on a fair value basis in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment sirategy. Such assets are
subsequently measured at fair value with changes in camying amount included in
profit or loss.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss through the amoriisation process and when the financial asset is
derecognised.

(i) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed
maturities and fixed or determinable payments, and it is the company’s intention to
hold these investments to maturity. They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss through the amortisation
process and when the financial asset is derecognised.

(iv) Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial assets that are either not
capable of being classified into other categories of financial assets due to their
nature or they are designated as such by management They comprise
investments in the equity of other enfities where there is neither a fixed maturity nor
fixed or determinable payments.

They are subsequently measured at fair value with any remeasurements other than
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in other
comprehensive income. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss pertaining to that asset previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified into profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets when they
are not expected to be sold within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
All other available-for-sale financial assets are classified as current assets.

(v)  Financial liabilities
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Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial guarantees are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
through the amortisation process and when the financial fiability is derecognised.

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the company assesses whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset has been impaired. A financial asset (or a group of
financial assets) is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events (a “loss event”) having occurred, which has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset(s).

in the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the

market value of the instrument is considered to constitute a loss event. Imparment losses
are recognised in profit or loss immediately. Also, any cumulative decline in fair value

previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified into profit or loss at

this point.

in the case of financial assels carried at amortised cost, loss events may include:

indications that the debtors {or a group of debtors) are experiencing significant financial

difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; indications that they will

enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a
separate allowance account is used to reduce the camrying amount of financial assets
impaired by credit losses. After having taken all possible measures of recovery, if
management establishes that the cairying amount cannot be recovered by any means, at
that point the written-off amounts are charged to the alfowance account, or the carrying
amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly if no impairment amount was
previously recognised in the allowance account.

When the terms of financial assets that would otherwise have been past due or impaired
have been renegotiated, the company recognises the impairment for such financial
assets by taking into account the original terms as if the terms have not been
renegotiated so that the loss events that have occurred are duly considered.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the coniractual rights to receipt of cash flows
expire or the asset is transferred to another party whereby the entity no longer has any
significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the related obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the fair value of consideration
paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or fiabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the company assesses whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. The assessment will include considering
external sources of information and internal sources of information including dividends
received from subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures deemed to be out of pre-
acquisition profits. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the
asset by comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's
fair value iess costs of disposal and value in use, to the asset's carrying amount. Any
excess of the asset's carmying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revaiued amount. Any
impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

impairment testing is performed annually for goodwiil and intangible assets with indefinite
lives.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances
Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each group entity is measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in US dollars, which is the parent entity's functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are franslated into functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are
translated at the year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical
cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date
when fair values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss, except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment
hedge.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income to the extent that the underlying gain or Joss is
directly recognised in other comprehensive income, otherwise the exchange difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Provision is made for the company’s obligation for shori-term employee benefits. Short-
term employee benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settied wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which
the employees render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-
term employee benefits are measured at the {undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid
when the obligation is settied.

The company’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and
sick leave are recognised as part of current frade and other payables in the statement of
financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits

Provision is made for employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements not
expected to be settied wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the related service. Other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made
to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary
levels, durations of service and employee departures and are discounted at rates
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations.
Upon the remeasurement of obligations for other long-term employee benefits, the net
change in the obligation is recognised in profit or loss as part of empioyee benefits
expense.

Page 12 of 24
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The company’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current
provisions in its statement of financial position, except where the company does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, in which case the obligations are presented as current provisions.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
result and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions are measured at the best
estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period.

k. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the
statement of financial position.

I Revenue and Other Income

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after
taking into account any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed. Any consideration
deferred is treated as the provision of finance and is discounted at a rate of interest that is
generally accepted in the market for similar arrangements. The difference between the
amount initially recognised and the amount ultimately received is interest revenue.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective inferest method, which for floating rate
financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery as this corresponds
to the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and the
cessation of all involvement by the company in those goods.

All dividends received shall be recognised as revenue when the right to receive the
dividend has been established.

Revenue recognition relating to the provision of services is determined with reference to
the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporiing period and where
outcome of the confract can be estimated reliably. Stage of compietion is determined with
reference fo the services performed to date as a percentage of total anticipated services
to be performed. Where the outcome cannot be estimated refiably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent that related expenditure is recoverable.

Investment property revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of retum on the net investment.

m.  Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivabies include amounls due from customers for goods sold and
services performed in the ordinary course of business. Receivables expected to be
collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current
assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for
impairment. Refer to Note 1{g) for further discussion on the determination of impairment
losses.

n. Trade and Other Payables
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Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the
entity that remain unpaid at the end of the reporting period. The balance is recognised as
a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the
liability.
o. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use
or sale are added to the cost of those assets, unfil such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred. : :

p. Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform to changes in presentation for the cumrent financial year.

q. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The directors evaluate estimates and judgemenis incorporated into the financial
statements based on historical knowledge and best available current information.
Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current
trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the company.

Key estimates
(iy Impairment - general

The company assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by
evaiuating the conditions and events specific fo the company that may be
indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are
reassessed using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key
assumptions.

r.  New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods

Accounting Standards issued by the IASB that are not yet mandatorily applicable to the
company, together with an assessment of the potential impact of such pronouncements
on the company when adopted in future periods, are discussed below:

- IFRS 9: Financial Instruments and associated Amending Standards (applicable to
annual reperting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

The Standard will be applicable retrospectively (subject to the provisions on hedge
accounting outlined below) and includes revised requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial instruments, revised recognition and derecognition
requirements for financial instruments, and simplified requirements for hedge
accounting.

The key changes that may affect the company on initial application include certain
simplifications to the classification of financial assets, simplifications to the
accounting of embedded derivatives, upfront accounting for expected credit loss,
and the irrevocable election to recognise gains and losses on investments in equity
instruments that are not held for frading in other comprehensive income. IFRS 9
also introduces a new model for hedge accounting that will allow greater flexibility
in the ability to hedge risk, particularly with respect to hedges of non-financial
items. Should the entity elect to change its hedge policies in line with the new
hedge accounting requirements of the Standard, the application of such accounting
would be largely prospective.
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Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9 may have an impact
on the company's financial instruments, inciuding hedging activity, it is
impracticable at this stage to provide a reasonable estimate of such impact.

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (applicable to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018},

When effective, this Standard will replace the current accounting requirements
applicable to revenue with a single, principles-based model. Apart from a limited
number of exceptions, including leases, the new revenue mode! in IFRS 15 will
apply to all contracts with customers as well as non-monetary exchanges between
entilies in the same line of business to facilitate sales to customers and potential

.customers.

The core principle of the Standard is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for the
goods or services. To achieve this objective, IFRS 15 provides the following five-
step process:

- identify the contraci(s) with a customer;

- identify the performance obligations in the contract(s),
- determine the transaction price;

- allocate the tansaction price to the performance obligations in the
contract(s); and

B recognise revenue when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied.

The transitional provisions of this Standard permit an entity to either: restate the
contracis that existed in each prior period presented per IAS 8: Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounfing Estimates and Errors (subject to certain practical
expedients in IFRS 15); or recognise the cumulative effect of retrospective
application to incomplete contracts on the date of initial application. There are alsc
enhanced disclosure requirements regarding revenue.

Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 15 may have an impact
on the company's financial statements, it is impracticable at this stage fo provide a
reasonable estimate of such impact.

IFRS 16: Leases (applicable to annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1
January 2019).

When effective, this Standard will replace the current accounting requirements
applicable to leases in IAS 17: Leases and related Interpretations. IFRS 16
infroduces a single lessee accounting model that efiminates the requirement for
leases to be classified as operating or finance leases.

The main changes introduced by the new Standard are as follows:

- recognition of a right-of-use asset and liability for all leases (excluding short-
term leases with less than 12 months of tenure and leases relating to low-
value assets);

- depreciation of right-of-use assets in line with IAS 116 Property, Flant and
Eguipment in profit or loss and unwinding of the liability in principal and
interest components;

- inciusion of variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate in the
initial measurement of the lease liability using the index or rate at the
commencement date;
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- application of a practical expedient to permit a lessee to elect not to separate
non-iease components and instead account for alt components as a lease;
and

- inclusion of additional disclosure requirements.

The transitional provisions of iIFRS 16 aliow a lessee to either retrospectively apply
the Standard to comparatives in line with IAS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Ermors or recognise the cumulative effect of
retrospective application as an adjustment to opening equity on the date of initial
application.

Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 16 will impact the
company’s financial statements, it is impracticable at this stage to provide a
reascnable estimate of such impact.

Page 16 of 24
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NOTE 2: PROFIT /{LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

a. Expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Formation costs
Employee benefits expense

b. Revenue and Other Income
Sale of goods '
Processing fee income

NOTE 3: INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax benefit / {(expense)

NOTE 4: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank

NOTE 5: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

CURRENT
Trade receivables
Other receivables

NOTE 6: INVENTORIES

CURRENT
Raw materials at cost
Finished goods at cost

2017 2016

$ ¢
48246 37,895

- 1,937
45008 20562
93344 69394
981,630 -
236,184 241,461
1217814 241,461

2017 2016

$ $
(1.820) 607
2017 2016

= $

9934 4834
2017 2016

$ ¥
43922 37,582

3,440 -
47362 31582
2017 2016

$ $
36,497 -
49,798 -
86,205 -

Page 17 of 24
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NOTE 7: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Buildings
Freehoid land at

- Land at cost
Total land

Buildings at:
- Buildings at cost

- Buildings accumulated depreciation

Total buildings

Total fand and buildings

Piant and Equipment
Plant and equipment at cost
Accumuiated depreciation-
Total plant and equipment

Motor Vehicles

Motor vehicles at cost
Accumuiated depreciation
Total motor vehicies

Total property, plant and equipment

NOTE 8: TAX

Liabilities

CURRENT
income tax

NOTE 9: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

CURRENT

Sundry payables and accrued expenses

2017 2018
$ $
45025 6326

45,025 6,326

539.043 539,777
(53,904)  (26,989)

485,139 512,788

530,164 519,114

85805 86,133
@427 (10,655)
58,078 75478

48,199 -
(3,855) -

44,344 -

632,586 594,592

81,675 210,096
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NOTE 10: BORROWINGS

Note 2017 2016
$ $

CURRENT
Loans from shareholders - 225,502
Borrowings from PT. Investasi Mandiri Interzircon 281,686 -
Lease liability 13 15,033 -
Total current borrowings __296.719 225,502
NON-CURRENT
Lease liability 20,541 -
Total non-current borrowings - ) 20,541 - -
Total borrowings 317,260 225,502

The amounts owing to PT Investasi Mandiri Interzircon relates to a credit line agreement
executed on 31 December 2015. As per the agreement, PT Investasi Mandiri Interzircon
provides a credit facility (credit limit of US$15,000,000 over a 12-month period) on the basis that
it is entitled to PT Investasi Mandir's client accounts receivable. Based on this agreement, PT
Investasi Mandiri Interzircon assumes 100% of the credit risk and has no recourse on PT
Investasi Mandiri once the right to the account receivable has been transferred. PT investasi
Mandiri Interzircon charges a 0.65% facloring commission and 5% p.a. interest rate paid
monthly calculated on the average monthly balance drawn down.

The lease liability relates to finance leases on two motor vehicles. One of the leases was
entered into on 11 September 2017 for a lease term of 36 months and an attached interest rate
of 15.99%. The second lease was entered into on § May 2017 for a !easetennoftlamonths
and an attached interest rate of 9.66%.

NOTE 11: ISSUED CAPITAL

2017 2016
$ $
10,000 (2016: 10,000} fully paid ordinary shares 72,450 72,450

Ordinary shares parficipate in dividends and the proceeds
on winding up of the company in proportion to the number of
shares held.

At the shareholders’ meetings each ordinary share is entitied
to one vote when a poll is called; otherwise each
shareholder has one vote on a show of hands.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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NOTE 12: RESERVES

2017 2016
$ $
Foreign exchange reserve 1,322 1,837
Capital reserve 322,288 174,076

323,610 176,013

The capital contribution reserve was created during the financial year following the execution
of a deed of release whereby the shareholders of the company agreed to unconditionally and
irrevocably release the company from its obtligation to repay the sum of USD$225,502 from the
current sum outstanding under the shareholder loans (refer to note 8).

The capital contribution reserve is distributable in future periods, subject to the provisions of
the local reporting jurisdictions.

NOTE 13: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

Note 2017 20186
$ $
a Finance Lease and Hire Purchase Commitments
Payable — minimum {ease payments.
- not later than 12 months 15,033 -
- between 12 months and five years 20,541 -
Present value of minimum lease payments 10 35,574 -
b. Operating Lease Commitments
Non-canceliable operating leases contracted for but
not recognised in the financial statements:
Payable — minimum lease payments:
- not later than 12 months 1.845 -
1,845 -

NOTE 14: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The company has no contingent liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017



~or p@[@@m@ﬂ use only

PT. Investasi Mandiri

NOTE 15: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2017 2016
$ $

Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating Activities
with Profit / {Loss) after income Tax
Profit / {loss) after income tax {19,172)  {20,359)
Non-cash flows in profit:
- depreciation 48,246 37,895
- foreign exchange (552) 1,820
Changes in assets and liabilities:
- increase in trade and other receivables (2.780) (37.582)
- increase in inventories (86,295) -
- {decrease) / increase in trade and other payables (128.421) 204,778
- (decrease) / increase in current tax liability (422) 3,205

(1985,532) 189,757

NOTE 16: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Effective 24 January 2019, the company entered into an exclusive operalion and
management agreement with PT Andary Usaha Makmur (a limited liability company in a
legai form of PMA incorporated under the laws of Indonesia), As per the terms of the
agreement, the company has engaged PT Andary Usaha Makmur as the exclusive
operation and management services provider. In doing so, the existing shareholders of the
company pledged their shares to PT Andary Usaha Makmur effective 24 January 2019. PT
Andary Usaha Makmur commits to invest in the company up to USD$15,000,000 over a
period of 10 years (for the purpose of mining equipment, other capital expenditure,
exploration and geology studies, operational and administrative best practices and
management and other consulting services). In return for such services the company is
required to pay a service fee to PT Andary Usaha Makmur equal to 85% of its net profit per
annum throughout the operation and management period.

NOTE 17: COMPANY DETAILS
The registered office of the company is:
JI. Taurus | No, 243 Menteng Jekan
Raya Palangka Raya Kalimantan
Tengah Indonesia
The principal place of business is:
Jalan Fery Penyeberangan Desa Tumbang Empas Kecamantan
Mihing Raya Kabupaten Gunung Mas Kalimanian
Tengah Indonesia
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the direclors of PT Investasi Mandiri, the directors of the
company declare that

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 3 to 21, are:
a in compiiance with international Financial Reporting Standards, and

b. give a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 31 December
2017 and of its performance for the year ended.

2 in the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be
able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Director M

“Bahing Djimat
Dated this 231 day of Aprit 2019
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HALL CHADWICK &' (NSW)

PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI SYDNEY
Fark

Report on the Financial Report
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report of PT. Investasi Mandari (“the
Company") which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and the
directors’ declaration.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of our report:

a. the accompanying financial report of PT. Investasi Mandiri is giving a true and fair
view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2017 and of its financial
performance for the year then ended; and

b. the financial report complies with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Inventories

We were appointed as auditors of the Company on 26 February 2019 and thus did not
observe the counting of the physical inventories as at 31 December 2017. We were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence by alternative means in relation to the
inventory balances as at 31 December 2017. Our audit opinion on the financial report for
the year ended 31 December 2017 was modified accordingly.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those
standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the auditor independence requirements of the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We
have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the . o
information included in the Company's annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the _
information included in the Company's annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017 “- PrimeGlobal
but does not include the financial report and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on =

the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial

report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether

the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

SYDNEY - PENRITH - MELBOURNE - BRISBANE - PERTH - DARWIN
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
www.hallchadwick.com.au
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PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial report, the directors
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the
financial report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF PT. INVESTASI MANDIRI

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

B S
HALL CHADWICK

Level 40, 2 Park Street

Sydney NSW 2000
/‘
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DREW TOWNSEND
Partner
Dated: 23 April 2019
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